


Important Notice

The Board of Directors, the Supervisory Committee and the Directors, Supervisors and senior management
of the Company warrant that there are no false records, misleading statements or material omission in this
interim report (this “Report”), and jointly and severally accept full responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy
and completeness of the information contained in this Report.

This Report has been reviewed and approved at the ninth meeting of the eighth session of the Board of
the Company in 2016. Mr. LIU Chong, non-executive director, was unable to attend the Meeting due to work
reasons, and has authorised Mr. WANG Yuhang, Vice Chairman, to vote on his behalf.

The financial report of the Group has been prepared with the China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (“CASBE"). The interim financial statements and notes (the “Interim Financial Report”) of the Group
as of 30 June 2016 prepared in accordance with CASBE have not been audited.

Neither any controlling shareholder (including its subsidiaries) nor any substantial shareholder (including its
subsidiaries) of the Company has utilised the non-operating funds of the Company.

The Company proposes not to distribute any cash dividend, issue bonus shares or convert shares from
reserves into share capital for the six months ended 30 June 2016 (the same period of 2015: Nil).

Mr. WANG Hong, person-in-charge of the Company and Chairman of the Board, Mr. MAI Boliang, CEO and
President, and Mr. JIN Jianlong, general manager of the financial department, person-in-charge of accounting
affairs and head of the accounting department (the financial controller), hereby warrant the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the Interim Financial Report contained in this Report.

This Report contains certain forward-looking statements made on the basis of subjective assumptions and
judgements on future policy and economy, which are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. The
actual outcome may differ materially from such statements. Investors should be aware that undue reliance or
use of such information may lead to risks relating to investment.

This Report has been prepared in both Chinese and English. In the event of any inconsistency between the
two versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Definitions

For the purpose of this Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set

out below:

[tems

"A Share(s)” (or
"RMB-denominated
Ordinary Share(s)”)

“A Share(s) Share Option
Incentive Scheme”

"Articles of Association”

"Board”

“CASBE"

“CFSE"

“CIMC" or “Company”

“"CIMC Enric”

“CIMC Finance Company”

“CIMC Financial Leasing
Company”

Definitions

ordinary share(s) issued by the Company in the PRC with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and traded in
Renminbi,

share option incentive scheme of China International Marine Containers (Group)
Co., Ltd. considered and approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 17 September 2010;

the Articles of Association of China International Marine Containers (Group) Co.,
Ltd.;

the Board of the Company;

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — Basic Standard and 38 Specific
Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China on 15 February 2006, and application guidance and interpretations to CASBE
and other related regulations subsequently issued,

China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 445) and an associated company of
the Company;

China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. (0000000 OO0OOO
O000oo0), ajoint stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability,
the A shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the H Shares
of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange;

CIMC Enric Holdings Limited (DO OO OO0 O OOO), acompany incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 28 September 2004 and listed on the
main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Hong Kong stock code: 3899) on 20
July 2006 and a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

CIMC Finance Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability on
9 February 2010 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

CIMC Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability on 30 July 2007 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
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“CIMC Hong Kong”

“CIMC Offshore Engineering”

"CIMC Raffles”

“CIMC Tianda"”

“"CIMC Vehicle”

"

“Corporate Governance Code

“CSRC"

"C&C Trucks”

"Director(s)”

“Group”, "we”, “our” and "us”

"H Share(s)” (or "Overseas-listed
Foreign Share(s)”)

“"Hong Kong”

“"Hong Kong Listing Rules”

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

Definitions

China International Marine Containers (Hong Kong) Limited (00 0000000 O
00O O0), acompany incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 30 July
1992 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

Yantai CMIC Raffles Offshore Ltd. (DO OO O0O0O0OO0OOOO0O0O), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability on 25 October 1996 and a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

CIMC Raffles Offshore (Singapore) Limited, a company incorporated in Singapore
with limited liability on 7 March 1994 and a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Ccompany,

Shenzhen CIMC-Tianda Airport Support Co., Ltd. (00O O00O00O0O0O0OO0OO
), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability on 18 July 1992 and a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

CIMC Vehicle (Group) Co., Ltd. (00D O U0 O OO0 OOO), acompany incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability on 29 August 1996 and a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company;

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules;

China Securities Regulatory Commission;

C&C Trucks Co., Ltd. (DO OO OOOOOO), a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability on 12 March 2009 and a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company,

the director(s) of the Company;

the Company and its subsidiaries;

overseas-listed foreign share(s) issued by the Company, being the ordinary shares
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and traded in Hong Kong dollars;

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited,

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Definitions

“Model Code”

“PRC" or “China”

"Pteris”

"Reporting Period”

“RMB”

“SFO”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shenzhen Listing Rules”
“Shenzhen Stock Exchange”
“Supervisor(s)”
“Supervisory Committee”
“US$” or “U.S. dollars”

"Ziegler”

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules;

the People’s Republic of China;

Pteris Global Limited, a company incorporated in 1979, listed on the main board of
the Singapore Stock Exchange in 1991, and then listed on Catalist in 2014 (stock
code: UD3), and a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,

the six months from 1 January to 30 June 2016;

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong;

the shareholder(s) of the Company;

Rules Governing Listing of Stocks on Shenzhen Stock Exchange;

the Shenzhen Stock Exchange;

the member(s) of the Supervisory Committee of the Company;

the Supervisory Committee of the Company;

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America; and

Albert Ziegler GmbH, a company incorporated in Germany with limited liability and
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Glossary

This glossary contains certain definitions of technical terms used in this Report in connection with the Group. Some of
these definitions may not correspond to standard industry definitions or usage.

[tems
CNG

GSE

Jack-up Drilling Platform

LNG
LPG

Modular Building

ONE Mode

QHSE

Semi-submersible
Drilling Platform

TEU

VOCs

Definitions
Compressed Natural Gas;

Ground Support Equipment, refers to airport equipment used to ensure flight
safety. To meet the requirements for aircraft maintenance and flights, airports are
equipped with a variety of modern ground support equipment, including but not
limited to mechanical, electric, hydraulic and special gas equipment;

A Jack-up Drilling Platform is a mobile oil rig commonly used for shallow water
operation. Most jack-up rigs operate in water depths ranging from 250 to 400 feet.
This oil drilling equipment is generally used for mounting machinery, power supply,
equipment and accommodation facilities for drilling and certain liftable spud legs
on a platform floating on the water;

Liquefied Natural Gas;
Liquefied Petroleum Gas;

the building manufactured in a factory environment and transported to a prepared
project site to be installed;

Optimization Never Ending, the lean management system of CIMC;

A management system that guides and controls an organisation in respect of
Quality, Health, Safety and Environment;

A Semi-submersible Drilling Platform is a mobile oil rig, the upper part of the hull
structure is the working deck and the lower part comprises two lower hulls, with
the parts connected by support columns. When in operation, the lower hulls are
submerged into the water. A semi-submersible platform is generally used in deep
seas with water depths ranging from 600-3,600m. The platform typically uses a
dynamic positioning system for positioning;

Twenty-foot equivalent unit, a standard unit of measurement of the volume of a
container with a length of 20 feet, height of 8 feet and 6 inches and width of 8 feet;
and

Volatile Organic Compounds
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Chapter |

COMPANY PROFILE
Legal Chinese Name:
Abbreviated Chinese Name:
English Name:

Abbreviated English Name:
Legal Representative:
Authorised representatives:

Registered Address and
Address of Head Office:

Postal Code:
Company Website:
Email Address:

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong:

Uniform social credit code:

Corporate Profile

0000000 mOoomoonoon
oooo

China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.
CIMC

Wang Hong

Mai Boliang, Yu Yugun

8th Floor, CIMC R&D Centre, 2 Gangwan
Avenue, Shekou, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

518067

http://www.cimc.com
shareholder@cimc.com

3101-2 Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

91440300618869509)

CONTACT PERSONS AND MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Secretary to the Board, Company Secretary:

Assistant Company Secretary:

Contact Address:

Contact Telephone:
Facsimile:
Email Address:

Representative of Securities Affairs:

Contact Address:

Contact Telephone:
Facsimile:
Email Address:

Yu Yugun
Shen Yang

CIMC R&D Centre, 2 Gangwan Avenue, Shekou,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC
(Postal code: 518067)

(86) 7550 2669 1130

(86) 7550 2682 6579

shareholder@cimc.com

Wang Xinjiu

CIMC R&D Centre, 2 Gangwan Avenue, Shekou,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC
(Postal code: 518067)

(86) 7550 2680 2706

(86) 7550 2681 3950

shareholder@cimc.com
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Chapter | Corporate Profile

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND LOCATIONS FOR DOCUMENTS FOR

INSPECTION

Designated Newspapers for
Information Disclosure:

Authorized websites on which
this Report is made available:

Legal Website:

Places at which this Report is Available:

"o

A Shares: “China Securities Journal”, “Securities Times”, and
"Shanghai Securities News”

A Shares: http://www.cninfo.com.cn

H Shares: http://www.hkexnews.hk

WWW.cimc.com

Office of the Secretary to the Board

CIMC R&D Centre, 2 Gangwan Avenue,

Shekou, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,

Guangdong, PRC

(Postal code: 518067)

STOCK INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Stock Exchange on which A Shares are Listed:
Abbreviated Stock Name for A Shares:
Stock Code:

Stock Exchange on which H Shares are Listed:
Abbreviated Stock Name for H Shares:
Stock Code:

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
CIMC
000039

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
CIMC, ZJHD (Note)
02039, 299901(Note)

Note: Both the abbreviated stock name and the stock code were only used by the
original B Shares Shareholders of the Company in the PRC in respect of their
trading of H Shares of the Company after H Shares of the Company were listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Whether the registered address, office address, postal code, website and email address of the Company were

changed during the Reporting Period

O Applicable + Not applicable

Whether the information disclosure and locations for documents for inspection were changed during the

Reporting Period

O Applicable + Not applicable

Whether the registration was changed during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable O Not applicable

Eﬂ s L.
BsL4WLy 4, Tany-. 4

%.gﬂ 44 %.gﬁ 4.4 Q.afig 4

Re-s 4 44y Re-s - 4Ray s h C p

Registration at the beginning of 14 January 1980 Market Supervision Administration 440301501119369  440300618869509  61886950-9
the Reporting Period of Shenzhen Municipality

Registration at the end of 22 March 2016 Market Supervision Administration 91440300618869509)

the Reporting Period

of Shenzhen Municipality

Whether other relevant information were changed during the Reporting Period

O Applicable + Not applicable
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Chapter II

Summary of Accounting Data and Financial Indicators

Unit: RMB thousand

T’} R‘L,hf The same period Changes from

- of previous year  the same period of

Q ay (January - previous year to

4‘2016) June 2015) the Reporting

Cash flow items ?Hv ) (unaudited) Period (%)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 933,732 (625,453) 249.29%
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (5,376,277) (4,915,427) (9.38%)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 5,570,910 6,180,113 (9.86%)

Q‘EQiﬂFJrAf i

Changes from the

t 5 Re A’hf As at the end of end of previous
previous year  year to the end of
(30 J‘ £2016) (31 December 2015) the Reporting
?H, ) (audited) Period (%)
Balance of cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the period 4,310,559 3,259,123 32.26%
Key financial indicators
LR Rp,:t«,f The same period Changes from
-y of previous year  the same period of
(Jada) (January - previous year to
2016) June 2015) the Reporting
(A 44 ) (unaudited) Period (%)
Basic earnings per share attributable to
shareholders of the Company (RMB/share) (0.1444) 0.5681 (125.42%)
Diluted earnings per share attributable to
shareholders of the Company (RMB/share) (0.1444) 0.5627 (125.66%)
Weighted average return on net assets (%) (1.64%) 6.59% (8.23%)
Weighted average return on net assets after
deducting non-recurring profit or 10ss (2.11%) 4.92% (7.03%)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
per share (RMB/share) 0.31 (0.23) 234.78%
40 qy YW A Changes from the
t 3R :bA As at the end of end of previous
previous year  year to the end of
(30 1‘ 4‘2016) (31 December 2015) the Reporting
?ﬂ_ B (audited) Period (%)
Net assets per share attributable to shareholders of
the Company (RMB/share) 8.61 8.90 (3.26%)
Gearing ratio (%) (note) 70% 67% 3%

Note:  The gearing ratio is calculated based on total liabilities as at the respective dates divided by total assets.
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DIFFERENCES IN ACCOUNTING DATA UNDER DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Differences in net profits and net assets prepared under International Accounting
Standards and CASBE

O Applicable + Not applicable

Differences in net profits and net assets prepared under foreign accounting
standards and CASBE

O Applicable + Not applicable

Reasons for differences in accounting data under domestic and foreign accounting
standards

O Applicable + Not applicable

NON-RECURRING PROFIT OR LOSS ITEMS AND AMOUNTS

Unit: RMB thousand

At g
ada
N 4‘2016)
by (4 4y )
Gain/(loss) from disposal of non-current assets (3,332)
Government grants recognised in profit or loss for the current period 135,375
Gains or losses from changes in fair value arising from holding of financial assets held for
trading and financial liabilities held for trading, and investment gains arising from
disposal of financial assets held for trading, financial liabilities held for trading and
available for-sale financial assets, except for the effective hedging activities relating to
the Group's ordinary activities 12,264
Net gains from disposal of investments 23,712
Other non-operating income and expenses other than the above items 21,101
Effect of income tax (30,604)
Effect of minority interests (after tax) (34,350)
Total 124,166

Note:  Aforesaid non-recurring profit or loss (other than effect of minority interests (after tax)) was presented at amount before taxation.

Reasons and explanations on the Company’s non-recurring profit or loss items as defined under the Explanatory
Announcement No.1 on Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public — Non-Recurring
Profit or Loss (the "Explanatory Announcement No.1”) and the recurring profit or loss items which are listed as
non-recurring profit or loss items under the requirements of the Explanatory Announcement No.1

0 Applicable V Not applicable
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OVERVIEW

In the first half of 2016, the global economic
recovery still remained weak, the demand from
developed countries was sluggish, the growth of
emerging economies was slow, and the international
trade continued suffering from a downturn. The
international financial environment was complex
and volatile, and Brexit increased the fluctuation of
the global financial environment. China’s economic
growth slowed down, exports continued shrinking,
RMB exchange rate fluctuation intensified, and
economic operational risk increased.

Although our Group took various measures and
made arrangements actively for coping with the
aforesaid dilemma, our Group still recorded a
significant decrease in the operation results due
to the impact of continued unfavourable market
situation during the Reporting Period. Meanwhile,
due to the significant provision for the purchase
of equity interests in Nantong Sinopacific Offshore
& Engineering Co., Ltd. ("SOE") by CIMC Enric, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group during
the Reporting Period, the Group recorded net loss
attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company. During the Reporting Period, the Group's
revenue amounted to RMB23,542.843 million (same
period in 2015: RMB32,637.289 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 27.87%, while its net
profit attributable to the shareholders and other
equity holders of the parent company was at a 10ss
of RMB378.034 million (same period in 2015: gaining
a profit of RMB1,518.195 million).

Chapter il

Report of the Board

REVIEW OF PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture
of modern transportation equipment, energy,
chemical and liquid food equipment, offshore

1
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Chapter Il Report of the Board

Container Manufacturing Business

The Group's container business mainly deals
with standard dry containers, reefer containers,
special reefers and Modular Building. The Group
has the capacity to produce a full series of
container products with independent intellectual
property rights. Special reefers and Modular
Building business include 53-foot inland North
American containers, European wide containers,
bulk containers, special reefer containers, foldable
containers and Modular Building products.

In the first half of 2016, due to weak global economy
and continued slowdown in China’s exports,
the growth of shipping trade was weak, and the
operation results of container shipping companies
continued deteriorating, with the prospect of
the market appearing to be relatively gloomy.
Meanwhile, some large-sized container shipping
companies and container leasing companies, which
carried out merger or acquisition in succession in
the previous year, were in the period of integration.
All these factors resulted in customers’ generally
postponing capital investment with their purchasing
demand for newly built containers weakened. The
lowering of demand and the relative overcapacity
made the competition in container manufacture
industry more intensified, consequently, the price of
containers was at a low level as a whole. However,
the number of orders of the same period in the
previous year was relatively at a high level, and the
year-on-year base was high, as a result, the Group
recorded a sharp year-on-year decrease in the sales
volume and the revenue of containers during the
Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the accumulated
sales volume of ordinary dry containers of the
Group reached 238,300 TEUs (same period in 2015:
736,100 TEUS), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 67.63%, the accumulated sales volume of reefer
containers reached 22,300 TEUs (same period in
2015: 86,900 TEUS), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 74.34%. The container business
recorded a revenue of RMB4,898.618 million (same
period in 2015: RMB12,478.632 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 60.74%; and the net
loss was RMB139.632 million (same period in 2015:
gaining a profit of RMB710.009 million), representing
a year-on-year 10ss.

In the first half of this year, faced with the weak
demand for container business and low capacity
utilisation rate, the Group actively shrunk capacity
by taking measures such as combining production
bases to help improve the capacity utilisation
rate and the profit margin. The relocation project
of containers in Fenggang of Dongguan City was
still in an orderly way, and it is expected that the
production line for the Phase | of this project would
be completed and put into operation in the first
half of the next year; the relocation of the Qingdao
cold chain industry park project has already been
completed and put into operation, which may
satisfy the steadily growing market demand for
special reefers.
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Road Transportation Vehicle Business

In respect of the road transportation vehicle
business, the Group has established different
product lines for special vehicles consisting of
10 series and more than 1,000 models, including
container semi-trailers, flatbed/staked-side
semitrailers, low-flatbed semi-trailers, vehicle
loaded semi-trailers, stake trucks, van trucks, tank
trucks, dump trucks, sanitation trucks and special
vehicles. These products cover major domestic and
international markets.

From the end of 2014, under the pressure
of national energy structure adjustment and
environmental protection, the growth rate of
domestic manufacturing investment has continued
to decrease, the market demand for special
vehicles has fallen, and the vacancy rate of
engineering special vehicles has remained high.
In the first half of 2016, benefiting from national
policy of stabilizing growth, domestic fixed-assets
investment such as real estate and infrastructure
construction recovered, and the domestic market
sales volume of special vehicles was driven to an
increase as compared with the same period of
previous year. In the overseas market, although
the shipping performance in the North American
market remained strong, the cyclical demand for
semi-trailers peaked; the economy of emerging
countries remained uneven, and the growth of
demand in each region significantly fell due to low
price of bulk goods, devaluation of currencies and
low oil price.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s road
transportation vehicle business achieved sales of
58,231 units (same period in 2015: 59,491 units),
representing a slight year-on-year decrease of
2.12%. It recorded revenue of RMB7,013.354
million (same period in 2015: RMB6,682.115 million,
excluding the heavy truck business), representing
a year-on-year increase of 4.96%, and achieved net
profit of RMB361.893 million (same period in 2015:
RMB318.726 million, excluding the heavy truck
business), representing a year-on-year increase
of 13.54%. The increase in revenue and net profit
was mainly attributable to the increase in the gross
profit margin as compared with the same period of
previous year driven by the business growth in the
North American and European market.

Chapter il

Report of the Board

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s road
transportation vehicle business continued
promoting the global operation management
steadily, strived to enhance the operational
efficiency of assets of each business unit and
the corporate profitability, and focused on the
investment and development of the incremental
business and the innovation business of each
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Chapter Il Report of the Board

In the first half of 2016, the continuous fall of the
international oil price narrowed the price advantage
of natural gas as compared with that of oil, as a
result, the progress of “oil to gas” projects in China
slowed down, and the attractiveness of natural gas
as an alternative fuel became less appealing. In
addition, the sales volume of natural gas equipment
of CIMC Enric, especially the sales volume of CNG
trailers, LNG vehicle-carrying bottles and LNG
gas stations experienced a decline to different
extents as compared with the same period of the
previous year; although the revenue of special
tank containers of chemical equipment increased,
the demand for standard tank containers was
low, the revenue of chemical equipment recorded
a decrease; the orders of liquid food equipment
increased, which drove the slight increase of
revenue. In addition, during the Reporting Period, as
some of the conditions precedent were not fulfilled
or waived, CIMC Enric terminated its acquisition
of the entire equity interests of SOE, and from a
prudent perspective, made provisions of RMB1.21
billion in aggregate for the first installments of
consideration, consideration prepayment, loans
and guarantee that had already been paid based
on the negotiation between SOE and the seller and
knowledge of the financial position of SOE and the
seller. Accordingly, during the Reporting Period,
CIMC Enric experienced a significant loss which
also incurred in the Group’s energy, chemical and
liquid food equipment business.

During the Reporting Period, the energy, chemical
and liguid food equipment business of the Group
recorded revenue of RMB4,338.109 million (same
period in 2015: RMB4,774.432 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 9.14%. The net loss
was RMB1,021.577 million (same period in 2015:
gaining a profit of RMB259.454 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 493.74%. The revenue
from the energy equipment business of CIMC Enric
was RMB1,445.660 million (same period in 2015:
RMB1,669.285 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 13.40%, the revenue from the chemical
equipment business was RMB1,248.365 million
(same period in 2015 RMB1,515.438 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 17.62%;
and the revenue from the liquid food equipment
business was RMB1,043.477 million (same period
in 2015: RMB978.326 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 6.66%.

In the first half of 2016, business segments
of CIMC Enric remain committed to providing
quality products and services and continued to
strengthen the development of new products
and projects to cater for the changing needs of
clients. (1) Energy equipment segment carried
out the research and development of LNG liquid
cargo tank for ships, LNG full containment tank,
LNG fuelling station, new series of cryogenic tanks
and decontamination system of nuclear power
station; some of the new products have already
been launched in the market and brought revenue
contribution. In the environment of low oil price,
the research and development team made efforts
in developing various LPG equipments, such as LPG
spherical tanks that meet international standard
and LPG power generation system. (2) Chemical
equipment segment strived to provide clients
with new logistic solutions and develop different
types of tank containers according to the needs
of clients, for example, 40-feet new international
LNG tank containers of high-performance, 20-feet
internationally applied cryogenic tank containers,
cryogenic tank containers catering for long-haul
international transportation and lightweight special
tank containers catering for European clients. (3)
Liguid food equipment focused on developing
the workmanship turnkey system of beer factory,
exploring new equipment with customers, as well
as increasing efficiency and reducing costs; at the
same time it continued to strengthen the research
and developing power of new technology for beer
brewing, realizing diversified development through
exploring new businesses.

During the Reporting Period, CIMC Enric has
completed the acquisition of 100% equity of Briggs
Group Limited ("Briggs”). The operation of Briggs is
in United Kingdom and United States; it is principally
engaged in the engineering, process engineering
and the sales of equipment and process monitoring
system in industries including brewing, beverages,
distilled food, pharmaceutical, health and beauty,
as well as bio-fuel and offers project management
and consulting services. The business of Briggs
and the existing liquid food equipment business of
CIMC Enric complement each other. The acquisition
of Briggs enabled CIMC Enric to enter the liquid
food industry of non-brewing field, bio-fuel and
pharmaceutical industry, expanding the combination
of products and services, as well as market area, in
order to consolidate its market position.
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Offshore Engineering Business

The Group is one of the leading contractors of
high-end offshore engineering equipment in China
and has been participating in the competition of
the international market of offshore engineering
business all the time. The Group’s offshore
engineering business is mainly operated by CIMC
Raffles and its subsidiaries. Our main products
include Jack-up Drilling Platforms, Semi-submersible
Drilling Platforms, and auxiliary vessels for offshore
engineering projects.

Continuously affected by the low international
oil price, the sharp drop in the global offshore
engineering equipment market continued in the first
half of 2016. Global mainstream marine petroleum
drilling companies postponed the delivery of
platforms under construction, and they did not
place orders. In 2015, a total of 257 vessels of
offshore engineering equipment were completed
worldwide, representing a year-on-year decrease
over 60%. From January to June in 2016, only a total
of 36 vessels of offshore engineering equipment
were completed worldwide, which continued to
decrease significantly because of the sluggish
condition in 2015.

During the Reporting Period, the offshore
engineering business of the Group recorded a
sales revenue of RMB3,703.689 million (same
period in 2015: RMB5,043.275 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 26.56%. Besides, the
Group incurred a net loss of RMB3.988 million
(same period in 2015: gaining a profit of RMB18.658
million), which was mainly attributable to a
decrease in new orders resulting from a decline in
oil price and deferred delivery of orders on hand.

In the "winter of offshore engineering industry”,
CIMC Raffles strived to overcome difficulties and
focused on strategic products, and obtained an
order from CNOOC Energy Technology & Services
Limted (DOOO0OO0DOOOOOOOO) of jack-up
drilling platform for HYSY 162 Project during the
Reporting Period. Meanwhile, it actively expanded
its new businesses and delivered a 5-year
special inspection project in connection with 2
semi-submersible drilling platforms during the
Reporting Period. CIMC Raffles has 14 orders in
hand, with the contract amount approaching USD4
billion.
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Oon 8 June 2016, under the leadership and
sponsorship of National Development and Reform
Commission, Ministry of Finance and Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology, China
Advanced Manufacturing Industry Investment
Fund was established in Beijing. As a superior
enterprise in the area of offshore engineering
general assembly construction, the Group signed
a cooperation framework agreement with SDIC
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (00 O O O O
OO0 00000) which is the manager of China
Advanced Manufacturing Industry Investment Fund.
China Advanced Manufacturing Industry Investment
Fund proposed to make equity investment in
CIMC Offshore Engineering and they are now in
the negotiations in respect of the specific terms
of the investment. Subject to the due execution
of Investment Agreement, offshore engineering
business in our Group will obtain national industry
fund’s direct support which will help CIMC Offshore
Engineering achieve new breakthroughs in the
R&D, design and general assembly construction of
high-end offshore engineering equipment and the
localization of core equipment, which in turn can
improve CIMC Offshore Engineering’s momentum
and ability to implement national offshore strategy
and innovative development.

Logistics Service Business

The logistics business of the Group is committed to
offering valuable logistics solutions for customers
by utilising a series of logistics equipment and
technologies. The development idea of the Group's
logistics service business is to change logistics
with equipment and build a unigue business model
for CIMC Logistics while giving full play to the core
competitive advantages of logistics equipment
in its designing, R&D, manufacturing, lease and
service; further build and perfect the global logistics
network distribution and build an ecosystem for
CIMC Logistics by centering on the “Belt and Road”;
integrate with the concept of “Internet plus” and
innovate in the new business development model
of CIMC Logistics; adhere to the principle of “cargo
value most (O O 0O 0O)", base on customer demands,
and expand full supply chain solutions.
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In the first half of 2016, the domestic logistics
services industry remained generally stable and its
structural differentiation was obvious. The demand
for international logistics increased. The logistic
demand in traditional industries such as mining and
high-consuming energy remained weak and logistic
demand in the equipment manufacturing industry
increased. The logistics service price remained low;
and the performance of logistics enterprises failed
to turn better in an obvious manner. Affected by the
market environment of bulk commodities, the Group
scaled down the supply chain business of logistic
services and adjusted the oil and gas business. The
revenue generated from the existing businesses
decreased due to the decline of shipping price.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's logistics
business achieved sales revenue of RMB3,218.617
million (same period in 2015: RMB4,267.810
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
24.58%, and net profit of RMB68.434 million (same
period in 2015: RMB57.474 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 19.07%. The increase in
our profit was mainly attributable to the satisfactory
profit from Sino-Worlink (Beijing) Investment Co.,
Ltd. and Sino-Worlink (Hong Kong) International
Logistics Co., Ltd. which were acquired in 2015.

In the first half of 2016, the four major business
lines of logistic services of the Group focused on
developing in the direction of equipment logistics,
multimodal transport, cross-border logistics
and systemic container services. (1) Equipment
logistics business line continued to promote lean
production and kanban management to improve the
manufacturing process of the factories and increase
the level of information; the Group has changed
the situation that equipment logistics business
mainly relies on export for growth by vigorously
expending the domestic market. (2) Container
services business line promoted the improvement

of quality, service, lean and information system
and strengthened the management and control
on cost and safety; confirmed eight business
products including shipping agency, freight agency,
container yard, storage and transportation,
reefer container service, leasing and sales of
second-hand containers, converted containers and
railway stations; strengthened the deep strategic
cooperation with customers such as purchasers,
containers leasing companies and railways; it
promotes the implementation of the strategy of
“one body with two wing” for rail-water transport,
sets up a core enterprise of joint investment, CIMC
Kaitong Logistics Development Co., Ltd. (DO OO
OOooooooo) along the Yangtze River Basin;
it quickens the network distribution of container
yards for Southeast Asia territory alongside the
“Belt and Road”, and makes a research on cold
chain logistics market. (3) Industrial logistics
business line built professional logistics service by
focusing on oil and gas, agriculture, food and other
areas, improving internal management and control
mechanism while making greater efforts on market
development and promoting in-depth integration
of logistics services. It vigorously develops and
operates transportation platform and declaration
platform, thus having achieved higher efficiency
and remarkable results. (4) Project logistics
business line renewed the organisational structure
and development strategy. Its business integrates
well with Sino-Worlink. Based on the international
railway collaborated transport and multimodal
sea-highway-railway transport, it taps the transport
potential of railway special vehicles and gradually
forms its customized cross-border multimodal
transport products services characteristic of CIMC
for sea-highway-railway transport of special cargos
by scheduled trains in the special cargos transport
area, through integration of the transport capacities
of specialized ships.
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In respect of innovation and expansion of new
business models, the Group started multimodal
transport business in March this year and
established CIMC Multimodal Transport Company
(00000O00O0O). Multimodal transport is a transport
process of mutual link-up and transshipment
jointly completed by two or more kinds of vehicles.
It relates to various links including dock, depot,
storage, financial lease and third party logistics.
The Group possesses two advantages in resource
and crossing border while starting such business.
The Group has a profound resource foundation
in container yard business, lease and customs
declaration and freight agency, and is able to offer
one-stop service in terms of products design,
technical certification, production and solutions
of logistics transportation. The Group will join
such business area by offering innovated logistics
equipment and tools to increase the transportation
efficiency of railways. The Group is currently
building logistics transport corridor in the target
area market, developing and securing source for
goods while focusing on differentiated competition
and railway transport market, namely, the market
suitable for a transportation radius of over 1000
kilometers. Currently, the railway transport trains
from Xian, Guiyang and Lanzhou to the east have
been launched.

Heavy truck business

The Group operates the heavy truck business
through C&C Trucks. C&C Trucks positions its
products in the mid-end to high-end heavy truck
market in the international market and the high-end
heavy truck market in the domestic market. It has
established the development strategy of “making
high-end products, providing quality services, and
creating first-class brands”. Its key products include
tractors, mixer trucks, dump trucks, granule tank
trucks and LNG trucks.

In the first half of 2016, the domestic economy
remained a low growth. Except for the real estate
industry, fixed investment, highway transport and
bulk cargo transport like coal which are closely
associated with the heavy-duty truck industry
experienced slower growth or negative growth.
However, after profound adjustment in 2015, the
heavy-duty truck industry witnessed a substantial
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rebound driven by strong demand for renewal and
industrial restructuring of certain down-stream
industries. The overall sales of the domestic
heavy truck market in the first half of this year
was 338,000 units (same period in 2015: 296,000
units), representing a year-on-year increase of 14%.
High-end and high-horsepower tractors maintained
high growth rate, with tractors carrying coals and
hazardous chemicals increasing by over 50%; dump
trucks began to recover growth from April this
year after 23 months of consecutive decline; and
affected by the narrowed price differences between
oil and gas, the sales volume of natural gas heavy
trucks continued to decline, but in a more steady
way.

During the Reporting Period, the sales of C&C
Trucks amounted to 3,003 units, representing
50% of the annual goals, of which high-end and
high-horsepower tractors (over 380 horsepower)
and hazardous chemical tractors pushed up,
recording an increase of 216% as compared to
the same period of last year. C&C Trucks realized
a year-on-year increase of 57% in sales volume of
its products under the unfavorable circumstance
that the export amounts of China’s heavy truck
generally decreased by more than 30%. During
the Reporting Period, the sales revenue from C&C
Trucks amounted to RMB860.359 million (same
period in 2015: RMB396.090 million), representing
a substantial year-on-year increase of 117.21%,
and the net loss reached RMB96.523 million
(same period in 2015: loss of RMB138.793 million),
recording a decrease of loss of 30.46% as compared
to the same period of last year.

In the first half of 2016, C&C Trucks strived to
change and promoted sales by various marketing
mixes including reintegration of resources and
organizations, product improvement, channel
building, international market expansion,
development of end market and smooth service.
In addition, by participating in various national
marketing activities like Beijing Auto Show and
China Truck Racing Championship, and through
multi-channel communications of Internet, WeChat
and new media, C&C Trucks further strengthens
its brand label featured by “high-end, safety and
energy-conservation”, and builds images for its
brand.
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Airport facilities equipment business

The Group's airport facilities business is mainly
operated by Pteris (including CIMC Tianda), Ziegler
and its subsidiaries. The Group also integrates and
achieves synergy with its subsidiary CFSE over the
advantages of resources. Its principal businesses
include boarding bridges, automated logistics
systems and GSE (including shuttle buses and lifting
platform vehicles etc.), fire trucks and other rescue
vehicles and related services as well as stereo
garage business.

In the first half of 2016, global airline business
gained prosperous development and the new
demands for airport facilities equipment (boarding
bridges and GSE) grew steadily. The fire and rescue
services, benefited from the pushing forward of
China’s urbanization, are flourishing. As the fast
development of e-commerce and express logistics
bring hard-won chances for automatic logistics,
stereo garage business can be more steadily
developed.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's airport
facilities equipment business recorded sales
revenue of RMB1,128.444 million (same period
in 2015: RMB883.084 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 27.78%. It achieved
net profit of RMB10.705 million (same period in
2015: loss of RMB47.245 million), turning losses
into profits as compared with the same period
of the previous year, mainly because Ziegler
achieved profits resulting from its good operation
performance.

During the Reporting Period, all principal businesses
of the Group'’s airport facilities equipment achieved
its desired development goals and accomplished
its business plans. (1) Boarding bridge business:
the Group continues to fortify its positions in major
airports of China and records steady growth in its
revenue and profitability, with the international
marketing network further improved and the
competitiveness in the global market further
enhanced. (2)Fire trucks and rescue vehicles
business: Ziegler is in the process of integration and
has achieved remarkable results, with the operation
procedures optimized and production efficiency
greatly improved, hence making short supply

relieved. The Group also started its integration
of associated company CFSE and is focusing on
future strategic layout to enhance competitiveness.
(3) Automated logistics systems business: the
Group has gained relative advantages in market
segments like airport, machinery and energy
and chemical. Meanwhile, it increased resource
investment and enhanced software integration
technology, thus product quality getting improved.
Currently, it is stepping up efforts to acquire core
technologies so as to further enhance its strength.
(4) Engineering vehicle business: Xinfa Airport
Equipment Ltd. gained steady growth in revenue
and profit. AeroMobiles Pte.Ltd and CIMC Air Marrel
SAS greatly improved their operation with their
synergistic ability being further enhanced. (5) Sereo
garage business: targeted to increase sales volume,
the Group increased investment in the market and
achieved progress. It is also further enhancing the
stability of the products.

Real estate development business

In the first half of 2016, benefited from domestic
stable growth policy, the domestic real estate
market recovered quickly and operated at a higher
level as a whole. Under the trends of the overall
recovering market, the faith of domestic real estate
enterprises to take possession of land continued
to increase, and the strategy for land possession
had gradually shifted to the second-tier core cities
with more favourable fundamentals. The scale
of debt financing of real estate enterprises grew
significantly as a result of continuously decreasing
financing cost in the first half of the year, which
brought effective capital expansion as well as
certain financial risks for the real estate enterprises.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's real estate
achieved revenue of RMB315.698 million (same
period in 2015 RMB238.713 million), representing
a year-on-year increase of 32.25%, and net profit
of RMB42.775 million (same period in 2015:
RMB139.116 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 69.25%. Such decrease in net profit
was mainly due to the relatively large amount of
investment income from the associated company,
Shanghai Fengyang Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. during the same period of the previous year.
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In the first half of this year, the first phase of
the first industrial estate project of the Group -
Dongguan CIMC Intelligence Valley has been put
into use. As of 30 June 2016, the total contracted
sales area of the CIMC Intelligence Valley amounted
to 36,200 square metres (including the Group’s
container headquarters building) and the total
amount of contracted sales reached approximately
RMBO0.417 billion with a total contracted area of
42,200 square metres, which represented an overall
occupancy rate of 93% of the first phase completed
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There was a material change in profit composition or profit source of the Company during the Reporting Period

O Applicable + Not applicable

Status of future developments and plans disclosed in publicly disclosed documents such as the prospectus, the
offering memorandum and the assets reorganisation report of the Company that continued into the Reporting
Period

O Applicable + Not applicable

The Company reviewed and summarized progress of business plans in the Reporting Period which were disclosed
previously

O Applicable + Not applicable

Composition of Principal Businesses during the Reporting Period
Unit: RMB thousand
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By industry/product
Containers 4,898,618 4,195,365 14.36% (60.74%) (60.02%) (1.56%)
Road transportation vehicles 7,013,354 5,690,682 18.86% 4.96% 4.41% 0.43%
Energy, chemical and
liquid food equipment 4,338,109 3,529,362 18.64% (9.14%) (10.35%) 1.10%
Offshore engineering 3,703,689 3,319,379 10.38% (26.56%) (33.13%) 8.80%
Airport facilities equipment 1,128,444 902,822 19.99% 27.78% 24.31% 2.23%
Logistic services 3,218,617 2,826,608 12.18% (24.58%) (28.02%) 4.19%
Financial business 1,114,356 366,336 67.13% 35.06% 38.96% (0.92%)
Real estate 315,698 156,605 50.39% 32.25% 11.69% 9.13%
Heavy trucks 860,359 837,730 2.63% 117.21% 129.94% (5.39%)
Others 297,323 221,051 25.65% (57.08%) (52.13%) (7.68%)
Combined offset (3,345,724) (2,919,444) - - - -
Total 23,542,843 19,126,496 18.76% (27.87%) (30.50%) 3.08%
By region (by receiver)
China 8,454,654 - - (32.45%) - -
Asia (regions excluding China) 1,838,387 - - (69.89%) - -
America 3,503,214 - - (49.16%) - -
Europe 8,283,362 - - 28.52% - -
Others 1,463,226 - - 115.28% - -

Total 23,542,843 - - (27.87%) - -
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Analysis of Core Competitive Advantages

A development strategy focusing on
core businesses to accelerate industrial
upgrades

The Group has been focusing on core businesses to
step up the industrial upgrades, so as to enhance
its industrial competitiveness. While strengthening
the advantage of the traditional container industry
and focusing on emerging strategic businesses such
as natural gas equipment and offshore engineering
equipment, the Group set foot in financial, logistics
services and other modern services. At present, the
Group possessed a diversified business portfolio,
with an industrial ecosystem of “manufacture +
service + finance” formed. The container business
continued to take the lead in the industry, as well as
offshore engineering, road transportation vehicles,
energy, chemical and liquid food equipment
businesses with strong competitive edges in the
PRC.

An enterprise framework and
management system for continuous
improvement and sustainability

The Group has developed a set of effective
management models covering business philosophy,
governance structure and management mechanism.
A standardised and effective corporate governance
structure is the institutional safeguards of the
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4. Analysis of Investments during the Reporting Period

(1) External equity investments
(@) External investments

\ Applicable O Not applicable
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(c)  Securities investments

\ Applicable O Not applicable
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Hshares 6198 PortofQingdao 128,589 40,414,000 0.85% 40,414,000 08% 121,42 1,701 Financial assets t far value Selfowneg
through profit or loss funds

Hshares 368 Siontrans Ship 2,782 2,996,500 0.08% 2,996,500 0.08% S at fair value Self-owned

Other securities investments held at the end - - -
of the Reporting Period

Profit or loss from Securities investments - - -
sold during the Reporting period

rof
3,150 (757)  Financial assets a
through profit or loss funds

Total 149,331 - -

124,392 o - -

(d)  Description of shareholdings in other listed companies

\ Applicable O Not applicable

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group's equity interests in other listed companies are as follows:

Unit: RMB thousand
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Australian Securities Exchange: OEL Otto Energy 13,480 14,000,000 1.19% 2678 - 133 Available-'for-sale Stockacqu‘\éiﬂon
financial assets
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 206 TSC Group 167,591 92,800,000 1342% 199,978 - 3954 Long-term equity  Stock acquisition
investments
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 445 China Fire 467,498 1223571430 3000% 480,056 - 18057 Long-term equity  Stock acquisition

investments
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(2) Entrusted wealth management, derivatives investments and entrusted loans
(@)  Entrusted wealth management
O Applicable +/ Not applicable
There was no entrusted wealth management of the Company in the Reporting Period.
(b)  Derivatives investments
\ Applicable O Not applicable
Unit: RMB thousand
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HSBC, Standard
Chartered and Forward exchange
other banks Ni No contract - 217/4/24 9,087,911 4,047,724 15.38% 102,520
HSBC, Standard Currency
Chartered and accumulator
other banks Ni No contract - 0173124 4,097,462 1,315,006 4.76% 379
CCB, HSBC and Interest rate swap
other banks Ni No contract - 202031 831,181 835,422 302% 893
Currency swap
HSBC Ni No contract - 201991 70,365 58,384 0.21% (5,174)
Total - - 14,086,919 645653 B37% 13,160
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Source of funds for derivatives investments
Litigation case (if applicable)

Disclosure date of approval of derivatives
investment at a Board meeting (if any)

Disclosure date of approval of derivatives
investment at a shareholders” meeting (if any)

Risk analysis regarding positions in derivatives
during the Reporting Period and explanations of
risk control measures (including but not limited
to market risk, liquidity risk, credit risk, operation
risk and law risk etc.)

Changes in market prices or product fair values
of derivatives invested during the Reporting
Period, where specific methods and relevant
assumptions and parameters used shall be
disclosed in the analysis of fair values of
derivatives

Explanations of any significant changes in the
Company's accounting policies and specific
accounting principles on derivatives between the
Reporting Period and the last reporting period

Specific opinions of independent Directors on
the derivatives investments and risk controls of
the Company

Report of the Board

Self-owned funds
Not applicable

Nil

Nil

As of 30 June 2016, the derivative financial instruments held by the Group were mainly foreign exchange forwards,
foreign currency options, interest rate swap and currency swap contracts. The risks of interest rate swap contracts
were closely related to the fluctuations of interest rate. The risks carried by foreign exchange forwards and foreign
currency options were connected with the market risks relating to exchange rates and the Group’s cash flow certainty
of foreign currency revenues in the future. The Group’s control on the derivative financial instruments was mainly
reflected in: making prudent selection and determination on the type and quantity of newly-added derivative financial
instruments; as to derivatives transactions, the Group developed rigorous internal approval systems and operational
processes, and clarified the approval and authorisation procedures for all levels involved, So as to control the
associated risks.

From January to June 2016, the Group's profit or loss arising from changes in fair values of the derivative financial
instruments was RMB136.160 million. Fair values of the derivative financial instruments of the Group were determined
based on market prices of external financial institutions.

No

In accordance with “Basic Norms for Enterprise Internal Controls”, “Application Guidelines for Enterprise Internal
Controls", "Enterprise Internal Controls Assessment Guidelines” and other relevant laws and regulations, the Company
has established a sound internal control System and put it into effective implementation. Therefore, the risks faced by
the Company regarding derivatives investments are controllable.
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\ Applicable O Not applicable
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Unit: RMB thousand
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Xiamen Xinshuangrong Automobile No 5,200 21.00%  Pledge of share options/ Driver training site construction
Driving Training Limited pledge of house property/ and purchase of training
corporate guarantee vehicles
Shenzhen Pengsangpu Energy No 6,800 9.00%  Equipment mortgage/ Procurement of solar equipment
Services Co,, Ltd. corporate guarantee
Xiamen Yingzhong Fuhai No 38,000 7.70%  Corporate guarantee Procurement of vehicles
Automobiles Limited
Xiamen Hongxin International No 23,000 8.75%  Corporate guarantee Payment of logistics fees
Logistics Co., Ltd.
Quanzhou Jincheng Maritime No 18,000 14.64%  Ship mortgage/corporate Payment of freights
Transport Co., Ltd. guarantee
Quanzhou Jincheng Maritime No 18,000 14.64%  Ship mortgage/corporate Payment of freights
Transport Co., Ltd. guarantee
Quanzhou Jincheng Maritime No 16,000 15.30%  Ship mortgage/corporate Procurement of fuel oil and other
Transport Co., Ltd. guarantee daily operating turnover
Fujian Tianlong Steamship Limited No 34,000 10.56%  Ship mortgage/corporate Procurement of ship and fuel oil
guarantee etc.
Quanzhou Jincheng Maritime No 11,350 14.17%  Ship mortgage/corporate Payment of ship lease accounts
Transport Co., Ltd. guarantee or cargo agency fees
Quanzhou Jincheng Maritime No 7,800 14.17%  Ship mortgage/corporate Payment of ship lease accounts
Transport Co., Ltd. guarantee or cargo agency fees
Xiamen Zhiyuan Automobile Limited No 50,000 7.80%  Corporate guarantee Procurement of vehicles
Fujian Tianlong Steamship Limited No 34,000 10.56%  Ship mortgage/corporate Procurement of ship and fuel oil
guarantee etc.
Linghbao Guoshi Mining Limited No 36,000 9.78%  Pledge of house property/ Procurement of ores
Liability Company corporate guarantee
Xiamen Xiangyu Free Trade Zone No 35,000 12.26%  Pledge of share options/ Payment of freights
Fengyi Logistics Co., Ltd. corporate guarantee
Total - 333,150 - - -

Extension, overdue or litigation (if any)

Measures to cope with risks arising from
extension, overdue or litigation (if any)

Disclosure date of approval of entrusted

loans at a Board meeting (if any)

Disclosure date of approval of entrusted
loans at a shareholders’ meeting (if any)

Litigations against Xiamen Xinshuangrong Automobile Driving Training Limited and Shenzhen
Pengsangpu Energy Services Co., Ltd. are in process.
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)

Use of Raised Proceeds

\J Applicable O Not applicable
Overall utilisation of raised proceeds
\ Applicable O Not Applicable

Unit: RMB thousand

Total proceeds raised 3,227,639
Total investment of proceeds during the Reporting Period 0
Total cumulative investment of proceeds 3,227,158
Total proceeds raised with changes in usage during the Reporting Period 0
Total accumulative proceeds raised with changes in usage 0
Proportion of accumulative total proceeds raised with changes in usage 0.00%

Description of overall utilisation of proceeds raised
The proceeds raised from the issue of additional H Share will be used for supplementing the working capital of
the Group.

Projects committed with raised proceeds

O Applicable + Not Applicable

There was no change of project to be invested with raised proceeds of the Company during the Reporting Period.
Change of project to be invested with raised proceeds

O Applicable + Not Applicable

There was no change of project to be invested with raised proceeds of the Company during the Reporting Period.

Status of projects financed by proceeds

\ ,
04 2V [ ryel

N [N
jhaky Y - tysH Day ./ 58458 4 QBB y Ly
Used for supplementing the 25 December 2013, 27 March 2015 www.cninfo.com.cn
working capital www.hkexnews.hk

Principal subsidiaries and associates
Please refer to the relevant information contained in “Il. Review of Principal Businesses during the Reporting
Period” under this chapter of this Report for the details of operations of principal subsidiaries and associates. The

details on the subsidiaries that began and ceased to be consolidated into the accounts of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in note V of “Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this Report.

Major projects invested by non-raised proceeds

O Applicable + Not Applicable
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Forecast on the Operating Results for the Period from January to September 2016

Warning and explanation in the forecast of the possible aggregate net profits from the beginning of the year to
the end of the next reporting period becoming a loss or a significant change compared to the same period of the
previous year

O Applicable + Not Applicable

Statements of the Board and the Supervisory Committee on the “Non-Standard
Auditing Report” Issued by the Accountant during the Reporting Period

O Applicable + Not Applicable

Explanation of the Board on the Affairs Relating to “Non-standard Auditing Report”
for the Previous Year

O Applicable + Not Applicable

Implementation of Profit Distribution of the Company during the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the proposed profit distribution plan for 2015 was passed at the 2015 annual
general meeting of the Company on 31 May 2016 in accordance with the relevant requirements of the Articles of
Association: the Company to pay a cash dividend of RMBO0.22 (inclusive of tax) for every share (2014: RMB0.31 for
every share) to Shareholders, which is calculated based on the total share capital of the Company as at the book
closure date of dividend distribution for 2015. The Company completed the payment of the final dividend for 2015
on 20 July 2016, and the dividend paid by the Company was RMB654.822 million.

[ N
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Was it in compliance with the requirements of the Articles of Association or the resolution

of the general meeting: Yes
Was the dividend distribution criteria and proportion well-defined and clear: Yes
Was the related decision making process and mechanism in place: Yes
Did independent Directors fulfill their duties and play their roles: Yes
Were the minority Shareholders given opportunities to sufficiently voice their opinions and

make requests and were their legal interests fully protected: Yes
Were conditions and procedures legal and transparent in respect of the cash dividend

policy with adjustments or changes: Yes

Proposal of Profit Distribution and Share Capital Increase by way of Transfer from
Capital Reserves during the Reporting Period

O Applicable + Not Applicable

The Company proposed not to distribute cash dividend, bonus shares or increase share capital by way of transfer
from capital reserves for the six months ended 30 June 2016 (the same period of 2015: Nil).
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10. Register of Reception of Research, Communications and Interviews during the
Reporting Period

Ty ./ Ma.g . 4B ./
Dfﬂ. v w)* i M. *. v 7}{» ﬁ-g’sm, Aalf
ppee £ e d sl v Payeud, VALY PII
11 January 2016~ Company  Field research,  Institution  Springs Capital (Beijing) Co., Ltd Principal business
one to one conditions, business
structure, investment
progress, recent industrial
developments and industry
outlook in 2016
12 January 2016~ Shanghai  The 16th UBS Institution  Invesco, First State Investments, China Same as above
Greater China AMC, Honghu Investment Management,
Seminar Neuberger Berman, CIC International
(Hong Kong) Co. Ltd., New Silk
Road Investment, Korea Investment
Management, APS Asset Management,
Q Fund Management, Stone Forest
Capital, PSquared Asset Management,
T.Rowe Price International Ltd., Nomura
Asset Management
19 January 2016~ Company  Field research,  Institution  Industrial Securities Same as above
one to one
25 February 2016 Company  Teleconference, Institution  ICBC Credit Suisse Same as above
one to one
29 February 2016 Company  Field research,  Institution  Huachuang Securities Same as above
one to one
29 March 2016 Hong Kong  Annual report Institution  Institutional analysts, financial media Announcing 2015 annual
results report results
presentation
12 April 2016 Company  Field research, Institution  Essence Securities Principal business
one to one conditions, business
structure, investment
progress, recent industrial
developments and industry
outlook in 2016
26 April 2016 Hangzhou  Spring Forum Institution ~ Fullgoal Fund, Orient Securities Same as above
of Listed
Companies
of Haitong
Securities
30 May 2016 Company  Field research, Institution  Sanlam Investments, SA, JPMorgan AM, Same as above
one to one UK, Colonial First State-Core, Northcape
Capital, Ellerston, Macquarie Securities
17 June 2016 Company  Field research, Institution  Guotai Junan, China Galaxy International ~ Same as above
one to one Asset Management, Shanghai
International Asset Management (Hong
Kong) Company Limited (DO O OO0
gooooooo)
30 June 2016 Company  Field research, Institution ~ Xiamen Pearl Fund (00O O000O) Same as above

one to one
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PROSPECTS AND INITIATIVES

Industry Development Trends and
Market Outlook in the Second Half of
This Year

Looking ahead to the second half of 2016, with a
weak recovery of world economy and an increasing
differentiation among regions, it is expected that
global trading and marine transportation market
will remain running at a low level. Such factors as
downturn oil prices, Brexit, and expected interest
rate raise of the U.S. Federal Reserve will result in
greater economic and financial fluctuation risks of
the globe. The domestic economy will still face a
downward risk.

In respect of the container manufacturing
business, based on the latest prediction of
CLARKSON (an authoritative analysis institution in
the industry), the growth of global container trade
will be approximately 3.8% in 2016, which is still in
a lower level although improved compared with the
same period of previous year. It is expected that
the imbalanced status of supply and demand in the
shipping industry will remain unchanged, and the
decreasing results of container shipping companies
and shrinkage or delay of capital investment will
cause a continually weak demand for containers.
The overall market is in inadequate demand apart
from special reefer business.

In respect of the road transportation vehicle
business, in the second half of this year, the
government will continue to proactively stabilise
the growth in the PRC market. It is expected that
the year-on year decrease in the special vehicles
market of the PRC would be narrowed in the
second half of the year. In the overseas market, the
Europe will continue to implement easing policies
to realize slow market recovery; slower cycle for
the U.S. Federal Reserve to raise interest rate will
alleviate the decreasing demand trend in emerging
markets; and the continuing economic recovery of
the U.S. and continual strong freight index will form
a marketing supporting for semi-trailer market’s
regular slipping from its peak.
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In respect of the energy, chemical and liquid food
equipment business, continuously affected by the
low international oil price, it is expected that China's
natural gas industry will continue to suffer pressure
for the short term, and the natural gas equipment
market will remain in the doldrums. As the chemical
industry is affected by the slowdown of the global
economic growth, the periodical volatility trend of
the chemical equipment is predicted to sustain. The
overall market trend of the liquid food equipment
will continue to remain stable.

In respect of the offshore engineering business,
it is expected that the international oil prices will
remain low for a period of time in the future. It
is hard to change the downturn condition of the
offshore engineering equipment markets this
year. Global offshore engineering manufacturing
enterprises face with risks including abandonment
of ships by customers and project assets
impairment. Currently, it is in a periodically difficult
period. With the gradual rebounding of oil prices
in the future and the integration of offshore
engineering industry, the delayed or pending
offshore oil and gas projects may get back on the
agenda again, and in a medium and long term,
the offshore engineering market still has room for
development.

In respect of the logistics services business, in
the second half of this year, the global trade and
shipping markets will remain running at a low level
along. It is expected that the logistics industry is
hard to see obvious rebound. As the overall level
of the logistic industry in China is low, the Chinese
government will drive industrial transformation
and upgrading with regional integration and
development and encourages opening-up externally.
Coupled with the concrete implementation of
the “The Belt and Road Initiative” strategies, the
continuous internationalisation of Renminbi and
the extension of bilateral free trade agreements,
it will constantly bring forth with enlarged
demand for logistics services as well as stricter
professionalisation requirements. The development
of logistic industry in China is faced with more
challenges and opportunities.
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In respect of the heavy truck business, in the
second half of this year, as the real estate continues
to recover and investments in railway increase,
it is expected that engineering vehicles market
will maintain its rapid development trend; and
as hazardous goods tractors and coal transport
tractors have increased at a high speed for nearly
one year and the supply and demand for highway
capacity have basically reached balance, the growth
of hazardous goods tractors and coal transport
tractors is expected to be slower. However, driven
by the replacement demands, it is expected that
the overall tractors will continue to keep a steady
growth in the second half of this year.

In respect of the airport facilities equipment
business, under the new normal, the growth of the
domestic infrastructure investment slows down,
and hence the demand for new airport equipment
will be reduced. However, the replacement
demand for the existing equipment will remain
helpful to maintain steady business growth. The
urbanisation process in China is conducive to the
further development of the fire and rescue vehicle
business. GSE business is expected to keep growth
in China and emerging markets; boarding bridge
business is basically stable, and demands for bridge
loading facilities increase; demands in emerging
markets for fire vehicles and special fire vehicles
increase. With the rapid development of domestic
e-commerce and automated logistics industry,
domestic market demand for various automated
logistics equipment will maintain its growth.

In respect of the real estate development
business, in the second half of this year, it is
expected that domestic policy environment
regarding real estate will increasingly differentiate,
third-tier and fourth-tier cities will continue to
destock. Market turnover increases steadily
stimulated by ease policies. However, the stocks of
commercial real estate in some second-tier cities
are expected to be high yet.

In respect of the financial business, in the second
half of this year, such factors as Brexit and interest
rate raise of the U.S. Federal Reserve will result in
greater world economic and financial risks and bring
relatively significant effects to the large financing
projects denominated in US dollars. It is expected
that the domestic financial leasing industry will keep
forging ahead. Due to the intensifying competition
of the industry and continual increase of the
social financing size, the capital return will be low.
With the greater downward pressure of domestic
macroeconomy, credit risks of existing businesses
under financial leasing are increasing.

Major Risk Factors of the Group

In the second half of 2016, the Group will still be
exposed to the following macroeconomic and policy
adjustment risks against its business environment:

. Economic periodic fluctuations: the
industries involved in the principal business
operations of the Group are dependent on
global and domestic economic performance
and vary with the periodical changes of the
overall economic environment. There are
risks that the growth of the Group’s container
business might slow down due to the
declining growth in global trade and China’s
export. Due to the declining oil prices, the
volume of orders received in global market
of offshore engineering equipment suffered
sharp contraction, putting the Group’s
offshore engineering equipment business
under great pressure. The changes and risks
in global economic environment bring higher
requirements on the Group’s operating and
risk controlling capabilities.
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Risk of industry policy upgrade and trade
protection: China’s economy entered into
the "new normal” and the government of
China presents the road map for and overall
objective of comprehensively deepening
reform to push forward the transformation
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In respect of the container manufacturing
business, in the second half of this year, for
container business, the Group will still focus on
connotative optimization and consolidation of its
leading position in the industry, and pay attention
to seizing the opportunity in market fluctuations;
continue to adopt measures including active shrink
and capacity adjustment to save expense and
improve efficiency; at the same time, continue to
develop and explore the new business relating to
containers, such as Modular Building, cold chain
equipment, logistics equipment, environmental
protection, new energy, new materials etc.

In respect of the road transportation vehicle
business, in the second half of this year, the
Group will continue to strive for comprehensively
improving the core competencies of global
operations. The Group will focus on exploring new
business and innovation business while developing
existing business so as to realise the continuous
quality growth. In domestic market, the Group will
seek for more sources of revenue by developing
new business. In North American market, the
Group will capture market opportunities to expand
its production capacity properly, extend the
geographical coverage of its products and increase
its product types and achieve sustainable growth.
In European market, the Group will continue to seek
for future growth drivers. In emerging markets, the
Group will develop key markets and ensure the
steady development of mature regions.

In respect of the energy, chemical and liquid
food equipment business, in the second half of
this year, in general, the costs will be reduced
through internal optimization, and the integration
of newly merged enterprises will be strengthened.
The energy equipment segment will continuously
reduce production costs, improve level of
innovation, actively explore overseas markets
opportunity, enhance the ability of delivering of
small-and-medium sized LNG ships, LEG ships
and LPG ships, and continue to develop business
opportunities for small sized LNG liquefying
systems and equipments as well as EPC services,
the chemical equipment segment will continue
to take the lead in manufacturing tank containers
industry, and intensify the development of special
and high-end tank containers (such as LNG tank
containers), liquid food equipment segment will
move forward towards the goal of possession of
vertically integrated EPC contracting capability
and horizontally diversified businesses to develop
Central American markets and emerging markets.

In respect of the offshore engineering business,
in the second half of this year, the Group will shrink
capacity according to the market situation and
strive to reduce 30% of the cost and increase 30%
of the efficiency, focusing on creating advantages
in cost and delivery time. Meanwhile, through
moderately related multivariate exploration and
expansion, the Group will substantially enter
into the new business which is able to stabilize
oil price fluctuations, such as offshore power
equipment, seawater desalination equipment
and other offshore engineering equipments in
marine economic realm (excluding offshore gas
exploitation) based on its existing capabilities.
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In respect of the logistics services business,
in the second half of this year, the Group will
follow closely the national strategies to continue
to improve the network distribution at home and
abroad; seize favourable period of state’s policies
to actively develop multimodal transport business;
change and improve the logistics by equipment
technology and gradually establish the leading
advantages of “Internet + technological innovation”;
train a compound team with skills of “logistics
+ vessel + equipment + management” so as to
establish core competitiveness for “"equipment+
service”.

In respect of the heavy truck business, in the
second half of this year, the Group will implement
the actions of annual sales volume increasing,
accounts receivable clearing and inventory
reducing; reduce the cost of finished vehicle and
shorten the delivery cycle of products; speed up
the development progress for national V Standard
products, high-horsepower tractors and special
chassis, comb the vehicle models with major sales
and adjust the product mix; promote financial
business to serve sales, strengthen the construction
of distribution channels and promote marketing
model innovation and further expand the overseas
market, so as to achieve annual sales target.

In respect of the airport facilities equipment
business, in the second half of this year, the Group
will continue to improve stereo garage business,
explore and launch new business models such as
BOT (Build Operate Transfer) and PPP (Public Private
Partnership). The Group will integrate and achieve
synergy over original business of Pteris; proactively
accelerate the integration of CFSE, and incorporate
the CFSE into plate management system of the
Group, deepen the mutual coordination with
Ziegler, deepen the market resource sharing and
cooperation with Pteris in the field of airport and
logistics.
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In respect of the real estate development
business, in the second half of this year, the
Group will strengthen the contract signing and
sales of zhigu Project and zhihui Garden Project
of Songshan Lake in Dongguan and continue to
promote the implementation of solutions of Qianhai
Project, Shekou Prince Bay Project, Shanghai
Baoshan Project and other projects and keep
close communication with government authorities,
striving to implement the agreements on relevant
projects within this year.

In respect of the financial business, in the second
half of this year, CIMC Finance Company will focus
on establishing timely and efficient capability in
financial services, provide customized financial
products through combining with actual operating
conditions of the Group’s member enterprises;
strengthen risk management and control. CIMC
Financial Leasing Company will continue to deepen
the coordination of industry and finance, step up
efforts on promotion and marketing, vigorously
promote sustained growth of the fundamental
businesses such as vehicles and energy and
chemical; continue to maintain steady and prudent
risk management and control policies, optimize the
asset structures to improve the asset quality.
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The following contents are the financial resource reviews
prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The following discussion
and analysis shall be read together with other chapters
and the unaudited interim financial statements and notes
thereto prepared in accordance with CASBE set out in
this Report.

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB23,542.843 million (same period
in 2015: RMB32,637.289 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of 27.87%, and profit attributable
to shareholders and other equity holders of the listed
company recorded a loss of RMB378.034 million (same
period in 2015: gaining a profit of RMB1,518.195 million).
For details, please refer to relevant information set out in
the chapters headed “Chapter II Summary of Accounting
Data and Financial Indicators” and “IIl. Review of Principal
Businesses during the Reporting Period” under “Chapter
Il Report of the Board” in this Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For details of the segment information of the Group
during the Reporting Period, please refer to note Xl of
“Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this
Report.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN AND
PROFITABILITY

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of
the Group was 18.76% (same period in 2015: 15.68%),
representing a year-on-year increase of 3.08%. Among the
principal businesses, the gross profit margin of containers
business and heavy truck business decreased slightly
as compared with the same period of the previous
year, while the gross profit margin of other business
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's cash at bank and on hand primarily consist of cash and bank deposits. As at 30 June 2016, the Group's
cash at bank and on hand amounted to RMB5,041.751 million (31 December 2015: RMB4,487.166 million), representing
an increase of 12.36% as compared with the end of the previous year. The Group's funds mainly derive from the funds
generated from operation and bank loans. The Group has always adopted prudent financial management policies
and maintained sufficient and appropriate cash on hand to repay the bank loans falling due and ensure the business
development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded net cash flows from operating activities of RMB933.732 million (same
period in 2015: RMB(625.453) million), net cash flows from investing activities of RMB(5,376.277) million (same period
in 2015: RMB(4,915.427) million) and net cash flows from financing activities of RMB5,570.910 million (same period in
2015: RMB6,180.113 million). At the end of the Reporting Period, the balance of cash and cash equivalents held by the
Group amounted to RMB4,310.559 million.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 30 June 2016, the Group's short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings, debentures payable and other current
liabilities (issuance of commercial papers) in aggregate amounted to RMB51,906.456 million (31 December 2015:
RMB46,241.746 million). Details are set out in notes IV. 24, IV. 35, IV. 36, and IV. 37 of “Chapter VIII Interim Financial
Report (Unaudited)” in this Report.

Unit: RMB thousand

. bE3 As at

30) 4 2016 31 December 2015

(4 44) (audited)

Short-term borrowings 18,155,292 17,909,024
Non-current borrowings due within one year 656,364 649,003
Debentures payable due within one year 3,998,881
Long-term borrowings 29,041,014 23,684,838
Other current liabilities (issuance of commercial papers) 4,053,786 -
Total 51,906,456 46,241,746

In the first half of 2016, the net bank loans appropriated by the Group amounted to RMB5,324.877 million (same
period in 2015: RMB5,008.519 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 6.32%. The Group’s bank borrowings
are mainly denominated in U.S. dollars, with the interest payments computed using fixed rates and floating rates.
As at 30 June 2016, the Group’'s bank borrowings included fixed-rate borrowings of approximately RMB27,804.494
million (31 December 2015: RMB12,472.493 million), representing an increase of 122.93% as compared with the end
of the previous year; floating-rate borrowings of RMB20,048.176 million (31 December 2015: RMB29,770.372 million),
representing a decrease of 32.66% as compared with the end of the previous year. For details, please refer to note XIV.
3 of “Chapter VIl Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this Report.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity interest
attributable to shareholders and liabilities. As of 30
June 2016, the Group’s equity interest attributable
to shareholders amounted to RMB34,353.688 million
(31 December 2015: RMB35,494.876 million), the
total liabilities amounted to RMB80,446.229 million
(31 December 2015: RMB71,268.295 million) and the
total assets amounted to RMB114,799.917 million (31
December 2015: RMB106,763.171 million).The Group is
committed to maintaining an appropriate combination of
equity and debt, in order to maintain an effective capital
structure and provide maximum returns for shareholders.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s gearing
ratio was 70% (31 December 2015: 67%), which increased
by 3 percentage points as compared with the end of the
previous year, mainly due to the increase of the total
liabilities for the current period as compared with the
end of the previous year. (Calculation of the gearing ratio:
based on the Group's total debts as at the respective
dates divided by our total assets.)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND
RELEVANT HEDGE

The majority currency of the Group’s business revenue is
U.S. dollars, while most of its expenditure is made in RMB.
As the exchange rates of RMB are affected by domestic
and international economic and political situations, and
the demand and supply of RMB, the Group is exposed to
potential foreign exchange risk arising from the exchange
rate fluctuation in RMB against other currencies, which
may affect the Group’s operating results and financial
condition. The management of the Group has closely
monitored its foreign exchange risk and taken appropriate
measures to avoid foreign exchange risk. For details
of the foreign exchange hedging contracts held by the
Group during the Reporting Period, please refer to note
IV. 2 and IV. 25 of “Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report
(Unaudited)” in this Report.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to the market interest rate change
risk relating to its interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings. To minimise the impact of interest rate risk,
the Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with
certain banks. For details, please refer to note IV. 24 of
“Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this
Report.

CREDIT RISK

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and on hand, receivables and derivative financial
instruments entered into for hedging purposes. Exposure
to these credit risks is monitored by the management on
an on-going basis. For details, please refer to note XIV. 1
of “Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in
this Report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2016, the restricted assets of the Group
totally amounted to RMB6,485.785 million (31 December
2015: RMB5,826.663 million), representing an increase of
11.31% as compared with the end of the previous year.
For details, please refer to note IV. 23 of “Chapter VIl
Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)”in this Report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had capital expenditure
commitments of approximately RMB340.197 million (31
December 2015: RMB960.181 million), which were mainly
used as external investment contracts entered into but
not performed or performed and manufacturing ships for
sales or lease. For details, please refer to note XI. 1. (1) of
“Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this
Report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had contingent liabilities
of approximately RMB81.072 million (31 December 2015:
RMB79.940 million). For details, please refer to note X. 1
of “Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in
this Report.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND
MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Retlan
Manufacturing Limited and 100% equity interests of Briggs
Group Limited at a total consideration of RMB1,023.262
million. For details, please refer to note V. 1 of “"Chapter
VI Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this Report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS AND EXPECTED
SOURCES OF FUNDING

The operating and capital expenditures of the Group are
mainly financed by our own fund and external financing.
The Group will continue to take a prudent attitude to
enhance its operating cash flow. The Group has sufficient
sources of funding to meet the requirements of capital
expenditure and working capital during the year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING PLAN

Based on changes in the economic situation and
operating environment, as well as the requirements of
the Group's strategic upgrade and business development,
the capital expenditure of the Group in 2016 was
approximately RMB11,976 million, among which
approximately RMB1,552 million was actually expensed
in the first half of this year, which was mainly used for
acquisition of fixed assets, intangible assets and other
long-term assets.

On 31 May 2016, as considered and approved by the 2015
annual general meeting, the first 2016 A shareholders’
class meeting and the first 2016 H shareholders’ class
meeting of the Company, the Company proposed to
issue no more than 386,263,593 new A shares (including
386,263,593 shares) at an issuance price no less than
RMB13.86 per share to no more than 10 (including
10) qualified investors including domestic institutional
investors and individual investors that meet the relevant
requirements and conditions. Gross proceeds shall not
exceed RMB6,000 million. The Non-public Issuance of A
Shares is subject to the approval of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission. Various forms of financing
arrangements will continue to be considered by the
Group in the second half of this year.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED

On 31 December 2015, the Company issued a total of
286,096,100 H Shares to COSCO Container Industries
Limited, Broad Ride Limited and Promotor Holdings
Limited at HK$13.48 per H Share, and the proceeds raised
were approximately HK$3,857 million (approximately
RMB3,228 million), which were used to replenish the
Group's working capital. As of 30 June 2016, the proceeds
raised of HK$3,856 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,227 million) have been actually used by the
Company. The proceeds raised of HK$575,428 (equivalent
to approximately RMB481,586) have not been used, which
will be used to replenish the liquidity by the Company.

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND SHARE
OPTION INCENTIVE SCHEME

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had 52,332 employees
in total (same period in 2015: 61,723). The total staff
cost during the Reporting Period, including Directors’
remuneration, contribution to the retirement benefit
schemes and share option scheme, amounted to
RMB2,129.005 million (same period in 2015: RMB2,515.447
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 15.36%.
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The Group provides salary and bonus payment to its
employees based on their performance, qualification,
experience and market earnings as a kind of incentive.
The share option scheme aims to recognise the previous
contribution of Directors and core employees to the
Group and reward them for their long-term services.
For details of the A Share(s) Share Option Incentive
Scheme adopted by the Company, please refer to “VIl.
Implementation and Effect of the Company’s Share
Option Incentive Scheme” under “Chapter V Significant
Events” in this Report. Other benefits include contribution
to the governmental pension schemes and insurance
plans for employees in mainland China. The Group
regularly reviews its remuneration policies, including the
amount of remuneration payable to Directors, and strives
to formulate an improved incentive and assessment
mechanism based on the operating results of the Group
and market conditions.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board proposed that no interim cash dividend for
2016 shall be distributed, no bonus shall be issued, and
no share shall be converted from reserves into share
capital (same period of last year: Nil).

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

During the Reporting Period, uncertainty of global
economy remains increasing. The Group maintained
the stable and healthy development and constantly
performed corporate social responsibilities by striving
to overcome the adverse effects of the externally
complicated environment of economy and making
contributions to the economic growth, employment and
development of the society. In the future, the Group
will continue to deepen industrial transformation and
upgrade with a strong presence in China while expanding
the network overseas. The Group put more focus on the
quality of development, so as to create more values for
Shareholders, provide more trainings and rewards to its
staffs with a better working environment, and provide
high-quality products and services to its customers.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

For details about the events after the balance sheet
date of the Reporting Period, please refer to note Xl of
“Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this
Report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE HONG KONG
LISTING RULES

In accordance with paragraph 40 of Appendix 16 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules, the Company confirms that, save
as disclosed herein, there has been no material change
in the current information regarding the Company from
the information disclosed in the 2015 annual report of the
company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to promote governance in compliance with laws and
maintained normal operation strictly in accordance with the relevant provisions of the state and the regulations
and documents issued by regulatory authorities including the China Securities Regulatory Commission, CSRC
Shenzhen, Shenzhen Stock Exchange, SFC and Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

In the first half of 2016, the Group further carried out the construction and supervision of its internal control
system to realise a full coverage. The Group continued to thoroughly propel four key tasks in respect of internal
control, namely establishment of the internal control compliance programme, construction of the IT-based
internal control projects, compilation of internal control manual for each level, and training of internal control
personnel, with the Personnel Training Plan for the Internal Control and Audit System of CIMC (2016-2020)
finalized and the Plan for the Training of the Internal Control and Audit Team and Project Coordination of the
Group for 2016 formulated to officially launch out the training of supervisors for internal control of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group focused on governance in compliance with laws in the internal control
work and updated part of systems and rules according to requirements of the regulatory bodies of Hong Kong
and Mainland China on securities, including the Information Disclosure Management System of China International
Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd., the Management Policy for Fund Raised, the Rules of Procedures for the
Board Meeting of China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. and the Implementation Rules of the
Audit Committee under the Board of China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd..

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the Principles and Code Provisions under the Corporate
Governance Code by the Company during the Reporting Period

The Board of the Company is committed to raising the standard of corporate governance within the Group and
believes that good corporate governance helps the Group to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and
improve its business performance. The Company has complied with the code provisions under the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules during the Reporting Period, except for
slight deviation from the code provisions A.2.7 Deviations from relevant code provisions as set out in 2015 annual
report of the Company have been partly improved. Deviations and their improvements have been disclosed in
relevant paragraphs below.

The Board

During the Reporting Period, the term of the seventh session of the Board of the Company expired. As approved
at the annual general meeting for 2015 of the Company held on 31 May 2016, Mr. Wang Hong, Mr. Wang Yuhang,
Mr. Wang Zhixian and Mr. Liu Chong were elected as non-executive Directors of the eighth session of the Board,
Mr. Mai Boliang was elected as executive Director of the eighth session of the Board; Mr. Pan Chengwei, Mr. Pan
Zhenggi and Mr. Wong Kwai Huen, Albert were elected as independent non-executive Directors of the eighth
session of the Board. As considered at the first meeting of the eighth session of the Board in 2016 held on the
same day, Mr. Wang Hong was elected as Chairman, and Mr. Wang Yuhang was elected as Vice Chairman.

During the Reporting Period, 6 meetings of the Board were held by the seventh session of the Board, of which
1 meeting was held on-site, 5 meetings were held in a way of written review resolutions with 43 resolutions
reviewed; 3 meetings of the Board were held by the eighth session of the Board, of which 1 meeting was held
on-site, 2 meetings were held in a way of written review resolutions with 4 resolutions reviewed. Of the 9 Board
Meetings in total, 1 was regular meeting and 8 were interim meetings.

41



42

China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Chapter V Significant Events

Save for regular meetings, in the course of the management and supervision of the Group’s business operations,
the Company'’s executive Directors have brought major business or management matters to the attention of the
Board to hold an interim Board meeting from time to time, and relevant Board decisions were made in the form
of written resolutions by all Directors.

As considered and approved at the 2015 annual general meeting held on 31 May 2016, the Company has
amended the Rules of Procedures of the Board of China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. and
added the authorities of evaluating and determining the nature and extent of risks that the Company is willing to
take in achieving the strategic objectives, ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains an appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control system and being responsible for supervising the design,
implementation and monitoring of risk management and internal control system by the management to the
authorities of the Board. The Company has also amended the main duties of Audit Committee accordingly.

Board Committees

During the Reporting Period, the Board Committees of the Company also completed re-election successfully.
During the Reporting Period, 9 meetings were held by special Board committees with 13 letters of opinions from
Board committees passed.

The Supervisory Committee

During the Reporting Period, the term of the seventh session of the Supervisory Committee of the Company
expired. On 31 May 2016, as considered and approved at the 2015 annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Lin Wuliu and Mr. Zhang Mingwen were elected as the supervisors on behalf of shareholders for the eighth
session of the Supervisory Committee. On the same day, as considered and approved at the general staff meeting
of the Company, Mr. Xiong Bo was elected as the supervisor on behalf of staff for the eighth session of the
Supervisory Committee. On 31 May 2016, as considered and approved at the first meeting of the eighth session
of the Supervisory Committee in 2016, Mr. Zhang Mingwen was elected as the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee.

During the Reporting Period, 3 meetings of the seventh session of the Supervisory Committee were held with 18
resolutions reviewed and 1 event considered. 1 meeting of the eighth session of the Supervisory Committee was
held with 1 resolution reviewed and 0 event considered. The Supervisors were in attendance at 9 meetings of the
Board on a non-voting basis and Supervisor Xiong Bo attended Shareholders’ general meeting once.

Shareholdings’ general meeting

On 31 May 2016, the Company held the 2015 annual general meeting, the First 2016 A Shareholders’ Class
Meeting and the First 2016 H Shareholders’ Class Meeting. The notice, convening, holding and voting procedures
of such meetings were in compliance with the relevant requirements of the PRC Company Law, the Articles of
Association and the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The announcements on the related resolutions of the meetings
were published in China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News and Securities Times and on Cninfo website
(http://www.cninfo.com.cn) on 1 June 2016, and on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.
hkexnews.hk) and the Company (http://www.cimc.com).
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The non-executive Director Mr. Wang Hong, executive Director Mr. Mai Boliang and independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Pan Chengwei and Mr. Wong Kwai Huen, Albert attended the abovementioned general meetings.
Non-executive Directors Mr. Zhang Liang and Mr. Wu Shuxiong and independent non-executive Director Mr. Li
Kejun failed to attend due to other important affairs.

Amendments to Articles of Association

On 31 May 2016, as considered and approved at the 2015 annual general meeting, the Company amended “The
Articles of China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.”. Details of the amendments to the Articles of
Association and the full text of the amended Articles of Association were published in China Securities Journal,
Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times, Cninfo website (http://www.cninfo.com.cn), the Company’s website
(www.cimc.com) and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the
Company (http://www.cimc.com) on 9 April 2016 and 1 June 2016, respectively.

Updates regarding to deviations from code provisions as set out in 2015 annual report of
the Group

The code provision A.2.7 requires that “The chairman shall convene at least one meeting every year with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors
present”. The Company has only one executive Director Mr. Mai Boliang and the Company’s business operation
is managed and monitored by the executive Director. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s CEO and
President Mr. Mai Boliang shall not take part in the matter regarding the adjustment of such executive Director’s
fixed remuneration for 2016. In addition, during the Reporting Period, the Company has not held a Board meeting
without the executive Director present.

Compliance with the Model Code by Directors and Supervisors of the Company for
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the standards prescribed in the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules as the code of conduct in dealing in securities by Directors and Supervisors of the Company.
After inquiries to all the Directors and Supervisors, all the Directors and Supervisors confirmed that they had fully
complied with the requirements in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

Audit Committee

The Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors and established the audit committee
pursuant to the requirements of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The members of the audit committee consisted of
Mr. Pan Chengwei (chairman of the audit committee with professional qualifications and experience in relation to
financial management such as accounting), Mr. Pan Zhenggi and Mr. Wong Kwai Huen, Albert.

On 8 April 2016, the seventh session of the Board of the Company has considered and approved the amendments
to the Implementation Rules of the Audit Committee of China International Marine Containers (Group) Co.,
Ltd., which amended and added to the responsibility and authority of Audit Committee in the oversight of the
Company’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures, including: to review the implementation
of Company’s risk management and internal control system and the self-assessment of internal control, and
to consider and identify the company’s significant risk and significant control defects; to study the important
findings of risk management and internal control matters and the management’s response to the findings on its
own initiative or as delegated by the Board; and to supervise the establishment and implementation of the risk
management and internal control system by the management, and ensure that the system is effective, etc.

On 29 August 2016, the audit committee reviewed the interim financial report of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2016, and agreed to present the same to the Board.
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VI.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules

For the changes in information of Directors, Supervisors and chief executive officer of the Company to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules during the Reporting Period, please refer
to the chapter headed “IV. Changes in Information of Directors and Supervisors” under “Chapter VII Information

on Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”. Except for such disclosure, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

LITIGATIONS

Material litigation and arbitration events
O Applicable + Not applicable

The Company had no material litigation and arbitration events during the Reporting Period.

Other litigation events

O Applicable + Not applicable

MATTERS QUESTIONED BY THE MEDIA

O Applicable + Not applicable

The Company was not involved in any matter which was broadly questioned by the media during the Reporting
Period.

BANKRUPTCY OR REORGANISATION RELATED ISSUES
O Applicable + Not applicable

The Company had no bankruptcy or reorganisation related issues during the Reporting Period.
ASSET TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of Assets
O Applicable + Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not experience any asset acquisition.

Disposal of Assets
O Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not experience any asset disposal.
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Corporate Mergers
\ Applicable O Not applicable

For details of the corporate mergers of the Group during the Reporting Period, please refer to note V of “Chapter
VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this Report.

IMPLEMENTATION AND EFFECT OF THE COMPANY'S SHARE OPTION
INCENTIVE SCHEME

Summary of Share Option Incentive Scheme

Share option scheme of the Company

In order to establish and improve the incentive-constraint mechanism, and effectively combine the interests of
the Shareholders, the interests of the Company and the personal interests of individuals, an A Share(s) Share
Option Incentive Scheme was considered and approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on
17 September 2010. According to such scheme, the first tranche of 54,000,000 share options (the “First Tranche
of Share Options”) were registered on 26 January 2011 and the second tranche of reservation of 6,000,000 share
options (the “Second Tranche of Share Options”) were registered on 17 November 2011 by the Company.

As at 12 May 2015, upon the consideration at the eighth meeting of the seventh session of the Board in 2015, the
options of the second exercisable period for the First Tranche of Share Options have met the exercise conditions
and were actually exercisable starting from 2 June 2015 to 27 September 2020 with the total exercisable options
amounting to 39,660,000 options. As at 9 October 2015, upon the consideration at the fourteenth meeting of the
seventh session of the Board in 2015, the options of the second exercisable period for the Second Tranche of
Share Options have met the exercise conditions and were actually exercisable starting from 24 October 2015 to
27 September 2020 with the total exercisable options amounting to 4,132,500 options. As at 26 July 2016, upon
the consideration at the fifth meeting of the eighth session of the Board in 2016 and the implementation on 20
July 2016 of the annual dividend distribution plan of the Company for 2015, the adjusted option exercise price for
the First and Second Tranche of Share Options is RMB10.55 and RMB16.08, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the total exercisable options of A Share(s) Share Option Incentive Scheme amounted
to 539,700 options, representing 0.98% of the total (adjusted), of which, totaling 499,600 options were exercised
during the second exercisable period for the First Tranche of Share Options, and totaling 40,100 options were
exercised during the second exercisable period for the Second Tranche of Share Options. The implementation
of A Share(s) Share Option Incentive Scheme has no material impact on the Company’s financial conditions and
results of operation during the Reporting Period and in the future.

Share option incentive scheme of the subsidiary CIMC Enric

CIMC Enric passed and adopted a share option scheme ("2006 Share Option Scheme”) at its extraordinary general
meeting held on 12 July 2006, pursuant to which CIMC Enric granted a total of 120,370,000 share options as
rewards and benefits provided to certain employees, directors and other eligible persons for their contributions to
CIMC Enric in November 2009, October 2011 and June 2014. For details, please refer to the related announcement
of CIMC Enric published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the relevant announcements released
on the websites of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company as well as
relevant regular reports of the Company in recent years. As of 30 June 2016, a total of 8,100,000 share options of
the 2006 Share Option Scheme have been lapsed. The 2006 Share Option Scheme is expected to expire in 2016.
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On 20 May 2016, the annual general meeting of CIMC Enric passed and adopted a new share option scheme
("2016 Share Option Scheme”) and terminated the 2006 Share Option Scheme. When the 2006 Share Option
Scheme was terminated, there were no other share options available to be granted, while share options granted
before termination remain effective and are available for exercise in accordance with provisions of the Scheme.
Since adoption of the 2016 Share Option Scheme, no share option has been granted by CIMC Enric pursuant to
the 2016 Share Option Scheme.

Implementation of the equity trust scheme of CIMC Vehicle

AN equity trust scheme of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary CIMC Vehicle was considered and approved
at the general meeting of the Company held on 17 October 2007 for implementation. Pursuant to the scheme, the
senior management relating to the vehicle business of the Company and the key employees of CIMC Vehicle held
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Mai Boliang CEO and President, 0 0 2,850,000
executive Director

Liu Xuebin Vice president 0 28,000 997,000
Wu Fapei Vice president 0 0 750,000
Li Yinhui Vice president 0 0 750,000
Yu Ya Vice president 0 0 650,000
Zhang Baoging  Vice president 0 0 750,000
Gao Xiang Vice president 0 0 375,000
Yu Yugun Secretary to the Board 0 0 750,000
Jin Jianlong General manager of the 0 0 640,000

finance department

VIII. MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED ACCORDING TO
SHENZHEN LISTING RULES

1. Connected Transactions Relating to Daily Operations

\ Applicable O Not applicable
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Y&C Engine Co,, Ltd Joint venture Purchase of ~ Purchase of ~ Regular commercialterms - 140,744 0.33% - - - - - -
goods goods
TSC Offshore Group Ltd Associated company ~ Purchase of  Purchase of  Regular commercial terms - 343 0.00% - - - - - -
goods goods
Xuzhou CIMC Wood Co, Ltd. Associated company  Purchase of  Purchase of  Regular commercial terms - 144 0.00% - - - - - -
goods goods
Asahi Trading Co, Ltd Minority shareholder of - Purchase of ~ Purchase of ~ Regular commercial terms - 23,053 0.05% - - - - - -
a subsidiary goods goods
Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automobile ~ Minority shareholder of Purchase of ~ Purchase of ~ Regular commercial terms - 28,966 0.07% - - - - - -
Co,, Ltd a subsidiary goods goods
Sumitomo Corporation Minority shareholder of ~ Purchase of  Purchase of  Regular commercial terms - 168 0.00% - - - - - -
a subsidiary goods goods
Other related parties - Purchase of ~ Purchase of ~ Regular commercial terms - 5469 001% - - - - - -
goods goods
Other related parties - Receiving of  Recelving of ~ Regular commercial terms - 10,913 4.83% - - - - - -
services services
Florens Maritime Limited Subsidiary of significant -~ Sale of goods ~ Sale of goods  Regular commercial terms - 66,874 0.29% - - - - - -
shareholder
Florens Container Corporation SA. Subsidiary of significant ~ Sale of goods ~ Sale of goods  Regular commercial terms - 5 0.00% - - - - - -
shareholder
Sumitomo Corporation Minority shareholder of ~ Sale of goods  Sale of goods ~ Regular commercial terms - 99,554 0.44% - - - - - -
a subsidiary
Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automobile  Minority shareholder of ~ Sale of goods  Sale of goods ~ Regular commercial terms - 38,242 0.17% - - - - - -
Co, Ltd a subsidiary
NYK Zhenhua Logistics (Tianjin)  Joint venture Sale of goods  Sale of goods  Regular commercial terms - 984 0.00% - - - - - -
Co, Lid.
Guangxi South Logistics Joint venture Sale of goods  Sale of goods  Regular commercial terms - 4516 0.02% - - - - - _
Other related parties - Sale of goods  Sale of goods  Regular commercial terms - 6,119 0.03% - - - - - -
Other refated parties - Rendering of ~ Rendering of ~ Regular commercial terms - 10,352 1.78% - - - - - -
services services
Total - - 43649 - - - - - - -
Details of substantial sales return Nil

Projected total amount of connected transactions in the ordinary

Not applicable

course of business during the current period by type and actual
performance during the Reporting Period (if any)

Reason for the Substantial difference between transaction prices and

referential market prices (if applicable)

Not applicable

Connected Transactions Relating to Assets Acquisition and Disposal

O Applicable + Not applicable

There were no connected transactions relating to assets acquisition and disposal of the Company at the end of

the Reporting Period.
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Connected Transactions Relating to Joint External Investments
O Applicable + Not applicable

There were no connected transactions relating to joint external investments of the Company at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Claims and Liabilities among the Connected Transactions

\ Applicable O Not applicable

Whether there are non-operating claims and liabilities among the connected transactions
JYes O No

Claims receivable from the related party:

Unit: RMB thousand
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Shanghai Fengyang Real Estate Associated company Operating borrowings  NO 34,204 - - - - 34,204
Development Co,, Ltd. of the Group by shareholders in
same ratio
Xinyang Wood Hong Kong Co,, Lt~ Associated company Operating borrowings  NO 4,084 13916 - - 661 18,000
of the Group by shareholders in
same ratio
Marine Subsea & Consafe Limited Associated company Operating borrowings  NO 297,027 6,344 - - - 30337
of the Group by shareholders
Nantong New Atlantic Forest Associated company Operating borrowings  NO 15,06 164974 - - 672 180,000
Industry Ltd. of the Group by shareholders in
same ratio
Frigstad Deepwater Holding Limited  Minority shareholder Operating borrowings  NO 146,493 17,032 - - - 163525
of a subsidiary by shareholders in
same ratio
Other related parties - - - 6,646 - 16 - 163 6,630

Effect of claims among the connected transactions on  Nil
the operating results and financial position
of the Company
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Liabilities payable to the related party:

Unit: RMB thousand
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Gasfin Investment SA. Minority shareholder of  Operating borrowings by 39,661 2,297 - - 868 41,958
a subsidiary shareholders in same ratio
Eighty Eight Dragons Limited Minority shareholder of  Operating borrowings by 182,640 - 182640 - 2573 -
a subsidiary shareholders in same ratio
Quercus Limited Minority shareholder of  Operating borrowings by 53,791 - 53,791 - 2,748 -
a subsidiary shareholders in same ratio
Shiny Laburnum Limited Minority shareholder of  Operating borrowings by 35 - 35 - 17 -
a sulbsidiary shareholders in same ratio
Shunde Furi Real Estate Investment Co, Ltd Minority shareholder of  Operating borrowings by 56,237 - - - - 56,237
a subsidiary shareholders
Shunde Binuo Sunshing Real Estate Co., Ltd Minority shareholder of  Operating borrowings by 43,350 - - - - 43350
a subsidiary shareholders
Effect of liabilities among the connected transactions on the Nl

operating results and financial position of the Company

Other Connected Transactions

O Applicable + Not applicable

OCCUPATION OF THE LISTED COMPANY'S NON-OPERATING CAPITAL BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND ITS RELATED PARTIES

O Applicable + Not applicable

There was no non-operating capital of the Company which was occupied by controlling Shareholders and its

related parties during the Reporting Period.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR PERFORMANCES

Trusteeship, Contracting or Leasing

Trusteeship

O Applicable + Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, there was no trusteeship of the Company.
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There was no contracting of the Company during the Reporting Period.

(3) Leasing

\ Applicable O Not applicable

For the leasing of the Group during the Reporting Period, please refer to notes IV. 8, IV. 11, IV. 14, IV. 34 and IV. 38
of “"Chapter VIII Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)” in this Report.

2. Guarantees

\ Applicable O Not applicable

Unit: RMB thousand
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Customers and dedlersof 2 April 2016 1250000 Tlenuay 2016 996400 Warrandice 112 years No No
subsidiaries of CIMC Vehicle
Customers and dealers of C&C 2 April 2016 2,000,000 1January 2016 180,320 Warrandice 1-2 years No No
Trucks and its controlling
stbsidiaries
Total external guarantee facilities approved during the 681530 Total actual amount of external 193,330
Reporting Period (A1) guarantees during the Reporting
Period (A2)
Total external guarantee facilities approved at the end 6,250,000 Total actual balance of external 1,176,720

of the Reporting Period (A3)

guarantees at the end of the
Reporting Period (Ad)
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Subsicaries of OMC 2 Al 2016 S0 1laay206 771810 Warandice 112 years No No
Total guarantee facilities for subsidiaries approved 310,000 Total actual amount of guarantees 310,000
during the Reporting Period (B1) for subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period (82)
Total guarantee facilities for subsidiaries approved at 17521040 Total actual balance of guarantees 17,171,810
the end of the Reporting Period (83) for subsidiaries at the end of the
Reporting Period (B4)
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Guarantee oflone subsidiary for 2 April 2016 7,963,670 '1 January 2016 ' 4,953,090 'Warrandice 1-2 years No No
another
Total guarantee facilities for subsidiaries approved 350,000 Total actual guarantee amount for 350,000
during the Reporting Period (C1) subsidiaries during the Reporting
Period (C2)
Total guarantee facilities for subsidiaries approved at 7,963,670 Total actual guarantee balance 4,953,090
the end of the Reporting Period (C3) for subsidiaries at the end of the
Reporting Period (C4)
Tyd By 33 C A0 3 ke
Total guarantee facilities approved during the 1341530 Total actual guarantee amount during 853,330
Reporting Period (A1+B1+C1) the Reporting Period (A2+B2+C2)
Total guarantee facilities approved at the end of the 31734710 Total actual guarantee balance at 23,301,620
Reporting Period (A3+B3+C3) the end of the Reporting Period
(Ad+BA+CY)
% of total actual guarantee amount (A4+B4+C4) in net assets of the Company 84.35%
Of which:
Guarantee amount provided to Sharenolders, the de facto controller and related parties (D) 0
Debt guarantee amount provided directly or indirectly to the guaranteed party with a gearing ratio of over 70% () 5,000,130
Amount of total guarantee amount in excess of 50% of net assets of the Company (F) 9,488,874
Total amount of the above three guarantees (D+E+F) 14,489,004
Explanations on liabilities for guarantees incurred during the Reporting Period or 0
possibly assuming joint settlement liabilities by the Company in respect of undue guarantees (if any)
Explanations on external guarantees provided in violation of prescribed requirements (if any) 0

Specific explanation of compound guarantees: non-existent

Irregular External Guarantees

O Applicable + Not applicable
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3. Other Material Contracts
O Applicable + Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, there were no other material contracts.

4. Other Material Transactions
O Applicable +/ Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, there were no other material transactions.

Xl. COMMITMENTS BY THE COMPANY OR SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTED IN 5% OR
MORE OF THE SHARES IN THE COMPANY OCCURRING DURING OR BEFORE
THE REPORTING PERIOD BUT CONTINUING DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

\ Applicable O Not applicable
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Other commitments made to the The Company  Others In accordance with the relevant regulations, 15August2012  Before domestic residents — During the course
minority shareholders of the domestic residents are not eligible to are free to subscribe for - of performance
Company purchase foreign stocks directly, so after OVerseas stocks
the implementation of the plan, domestic
residents can only hold or sell its H Shares
of the Company which they legally possess
due to the change of listing location of
shares of the Company, they are not
eligible to subscribe for the shares of the
Company and other H shares or other
overseas stocks, and also after the sales of
H shares of the Company, the sales income
must be timely transferred to the mainland.
The Company promises domestic residents
that before they are free to purchase
overseas stocks, the Company will not
finance by means of allotment
Other commitments made to the The Company Dividend Shareholders' bonus return plan (2016 t0 2018) 8 April 2016 201602018 During the course
minority shareholders of the distribution of performance
Company

The commitment is fulfiled ina  Yes
timely manner or not
If the commitment is not fulfilled Not applicable
when overdue, explanations
0 reasons and working
plans for the next step
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Xll. ENGAGEMENT AND DISENGAGEMENT OF FIRMS OF ACCOUNTANTS

XIII.

Whether the interim financial report has been audited or not
O Yes + No
The 2016 Interim Financial Report has not been audited. On 31 May 2016, as considered and approved at the

2015 Annual General Meeting of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP was appointed as the
auditor of the Company for 2016.

PENALTIES AND REMEDIES
O Applicable + Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not experience any penalties and remedies.

XIV.RISK WARNING OF ILLEGAL AND IRREGULAR DELISTING

O Applicable + Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no risk relating to illegal and irregular delisting.

XV. EXPLANATION ON OTHER MATERIAL EVENTS

Oon 31 March 2016, the Company was informed by China Shipping Container Lines Co., Ltd (“CSCL") that
the transaction for its wholly-owned subsidiary China Shipping Container Lines (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
("CSHK") to purchase the 100% equity interest in Long Honour Investments Limited from COSCO (Hong Kong)
Group Limited was completed on 31 March 2016. On 4 May 2016, the Company was informed by China
Shipping (Group) Company (“China Shipping”) that the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
commission of the State Council (“SASAC") gratuitously transferred its 100% interest in China Shipping to
China COSCO Shipping Corporation Limited (“China COSCO Shipping”). After the Gratuitous Transfer, China
COSCO Shipping indirectly held 432,171,843 A shares and 245,842,181 H shares of the Company through
CSCL and its subsidiaries, as the second largest shareholder of the Company. For relevant information,
please refer to the announcements (Notice No.: [CIMC] 2016-012, [CIMC] 2016-027) disclosed in China
Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times, Cninfo website (www.cninfo.com.cn), the
Company’s website (www.cimc.com), and the announcement published on the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) by the Company on 1 April 2016 and 5 May 2016.

Oon 8 April 2016, as considered and approved by the third meeting of the seventh session of the Board for
2016 of the Company, the Company proposed to issue no more than 386,263,593 new A shares (including
386,263,593 shares) at an issuance price no less than RMB13.86 per share to no more than 10 (including
10) qualified investors including domestic institutional investors and individual investors that meet the
relevant requirements and conditions (“the Non-public Issuance of A Shares”). Gross proceeds shall not
exceed RMB6,000 million. The Non-public Issuance of A Shares was approved at the 2015 annual general
meeting, the first 2016 A shareholders’ class meeting and the first 2016 H shareholders’ class meeting
of the Company held on 31 May 2016, which subjects to the approval of the China Securities Regulatory
Ccommission. For relevant information, please refer to the announcements (Notice No.: [CIMC] 2016-018 and
[CIMC] 2016-033) disclosed in China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times, Cninfo
website (www.cninfo.com.cn), the Company’s website (www.cimc.com) and the announcements published
on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) by the Company on 9 April 2016 and
1 June 2016, respectively.
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On 23 May 2016, the 2011 first tranche of medium term note on the National Inter-bank Bond Market issued
by the Company on 20 May 2011 was due and the Company repaid the principal and interests of such
note on the maturity date. For relevant information, please refer to the announcements (Notice No.: [CIMC]
2010-039, [CIMC] 2011-015, [CIMC] 2011-016 and [CIMC] 2016-030) disclosed in China Securities Journal,
Securities Times, Shanghai Securities News, Cninfo website (www.cninfo.com.cn), the Company’s website
(www.cimc.com) and the announcement published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) by the Company on 16 November 2010, 10 May 2011, 19 May 2011 and 24 May 2016,
respectively.

On 31 May 2016, the Company considered and approved the Resolution on the Registration and Issuance of
Medium Term Notes (including Perpetual Medium Term Notes) and Super & Short-term Commercial Papers
in the PRC at the annual general meeting of 2015 which, among others, approved the issuance by the
Company of RMB medium term note with a size of not more than RMB6.0 billion. On 11 August 2016, the
Company issued the first tranche of the Medium Term Note for 2016 with a size of RMB3.5 billion, a coupon
rate of 3.07% and a term of three years. On 22 August 2016, the Company issued 2016 Tranche Il Medium
Term Notes with a size of RMB2.5 billion, a coupon rate of 3.15% and a term of three years. For relevant
information, please refer to the announcements (Notice No.: [CIMC] 2016-033, [CIMC] 2016-045 and [CIMC]
2016-048) disclosed in China Securities Journal, Securities Times, Shanghai Securities News, Cninfo website
(www.cninfo.com.cn), the Company’s website (www. cimc.com) and the announcements published on the
website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www. hkexnews.hk) by the Company on 1 June 2016, 13 August
2016 and 23 August 2016, respectively.

On 18 August 2016, the Company signed a strategic cooperation framework agreement with Global Logistic
Properties Investment Management (China) Co., Ltd.. Under the Agreement, both parties intend to jointly
develop their logistic properties business and forge a comprehensive strategic partnership based on their
relevant strategic resources, so as to achieve benefits from complementary advantages and powerful
alliances. For relevant information, please refer to the announcement (Notice No.: [CIMC] 2016-047)
disclosed in China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times, Cninfo website (wWww.
cninfo.com.cn), the Company’s website (www.cimc.com) by the company on 19 August 2016, and the
relevant announcement published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www. hkexnews.hk),
respectively.

On 24 August 2016, the Company signed a Sales Framework Agreement with CSCL, pursuant to which the
Group agreed to provide commodities (including but not limited to containers) to CSCL, and agreed on the
estimated aggregate transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2016. For relevant information,
please refer to the announcement (Notice No.: [CIMC] 2016-050) disclosed in China Securities Journal,
Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times, Cninfo website (www.cninfo.com.cn), the Company’s website
(www.cimec.com) by the Company on 25 August 2016, and the relevant announcement published on the
website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) on 24 August 2016.

XVI.CORPORATE BONDS
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CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE REPORTING PERIOD

S

1.
2

S

1.

4.

hares with selling restrictions
State-owned shares
Shares held by state-owned
companies
. Shares held by other domestic
investors
Shares held by domestic legal
Persons
Shares held by domestic
natural persons
. Shares held by foreign investors
Shares held by foreign legal
persons
Shares held by foreign
natural persons
hares without selling restrictions
RMB-denominated Ordinary
Shares (A Shares)
. Shares traded in non-
RMB currencies and listed
domestically
. Shares traded in non-RMB
currencies and fisted overseas
(H Shares)
Others

Total Shares
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606  003% 200 0

0 000% 00
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0 000% 00

0 000% 00

0 000% 00
2976953660 99T 51870 0
1260377050 3% 518700 0
0 000% 00
1716576609 5765% 00
0 000% 00
29781968 10000% 59700 0

0
0

0
0

21,000
0

21,000

21,000

518,700

518,700

0
0
539,700

887,026 0.03%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

887,026 0.03%

0 0.00%

887,026 0.03%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%
2977472360 99.97%
1260895751 42.34%
0 0.00%
1716576609 57.63%
0 0.00%
2978359386 100.00%

Reasons for changes in shares

1.

In January 2016, the Company’s vice president Mr. Liu Xuebin exercised 28,000 share options of A Shares,

75% of which (21,000 share options) were subject to selling restriction.

During the Reporting Period, 499,600 options were exercised during the second exercisable period for the
First Tranche of Share Options (including the options exercised by Mr. Liu Xuebin), and 40,100 options were
exercised during the second exercisable period for the Second Tranche of Share Options, that is, totaling
539,700 share options were exercised.

Approval for changes in share capital

O Applicable  Not applicable
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Transfer for changes in shares
O Applicable +/ Not applicable

Effects of changes in share capital on financial indicators such as the basic earnings per share and diluted
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NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDINGS OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2016, the total number of Shareholders of the Company was 82,489, including: 12 holders of H
Shares and 82,477 holders of A Shares.
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HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign legal person 52.83% 1573365259 143,041,050 - 1,573,365,259 0
C0SCO Container Industries Limited Foreign legal person 16.70% 497,271,481 - - 497,071,481 - 0
State-owned legal
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited ~ person 2.96% 88,103,367 7,688,648 - 88,103,367 - 0
Broad Ride Limited Foreign legal person 262% 77948412 - - 77948 412 - 0
State-owned legal
Central Huijin Asset Management Ltd. person 1.28% 37,993,300 - - 37,993,800 - 0
ICBC Credit Suisse Fund - Agricultural Bank - Domestic non-state-
ICBC Credit Suisse China Securities and owned legal
Financial Assets Management Program Derson 0.32% 9,566,600 - - 9,566,600 - 0
Zhong Ou Fund - Agricultural Bank - Domestic non-state-
Zhong Qu China Securities and owned legal
Financial Assets Management Program person 0.32% 9,966,600 - - 9,566,600 - 0
Bosera Funds - Agricultural Bank - Domestic non-state-
Bosera China Securities and owned legal
Financial Assets Management Program person 0.32% 9,966,600 - - 9,966,600 - 0
Dacheng Fund - Agricultural Bank - Domestic non-state-
Dacheng China Securities and owned legal
Financial Assets Management Program person 0.32% 9,966,600 - - 9,566,600 - 0
Harvest Fund - Agricultural Bank - Domestic non-state-
Harvest China Securities and owned legal
Financial Assets Management Program Person 0.32% 9,566,600 - - 9,566,600 - 0
The relationship or concerted action of the
above mentioned Shareholders None
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HKSCC Nominees Limited

1,573,365,259

Overseas listed
foreign shares
RMB-denominated

1,573,365,259

COSCO Container Industries Limited 432,171,843 ordinary shares 432,171,843
Overseas listed
COSCO Container Industries Limited 65,099,638 foreign shares 65,099,638
RMB-denominated
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 88,103,367 ordinary shares 88,103,367
Overseas listed
Broad Ride Limited 77,948,412 foreign shares 77,948,412
RMB-denominated
Central Huijin Asset Management Ltd. 37,993,800 ordinary shares 37,993,800
ICBC Credit Suisse Fund — Agricultural Bank — ICBC
Credit Suisse China Securities and Financial Assets RMB-denominated
Management Program 9,566,600 ordinary shares 9,566,600
Zhong Ou Fund — Agricultural Bank — Zhong Ou
China Securities and Financial Assets Management RMB-denominated
Program 9,566,600 ordinary shares 9,566,600
Bosera Funds — Agricultural Bank — Bosera China
Securities and Financial Assets Management RMB-denominated
Program 9,566,600 ordinary shares 9,566,600
Dacheng Fund - Agricultural Bank — Dacheng China
Securities and Financial Assets Management RMB-denominated
Program 9,566,600 ordinary shares 9,566,600
Harvest Fund — Agricultural Bank -Harvest China
Securities and Financial Assets Management RMB-denominated
Program 9,566,600 ordinary shares 9,566,600
The relationship or concerted action between the
top ten Shareholders of circulating shares without
selling restrictions, or the top ten Shareholders of
circulating shares without selling restrictions and
the top ten Shareholders unknown
Explanation on the top ten ordinary Shareholders
participating in financing securities business (if any) Nil

Whether the top ten ordinary Shareholders and the top ten ordinary Shareholders without selling restrictions
conducted any agreed repurchase transactions during the Reporting Period

O Yes + No
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DISCLOSURE OF SHAREHOLDINGS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE OF
HONG KONG

As far as the Directors were aware, as at 30 June 2016, the persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors or the
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register of interests in shares and short positions required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance are as follows:
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Ne'y /S8, % 4. e 4 N*q _¢0agl  Caau) agd (6)  aya (%)
China Merchants Group Limited ("CMM Group”)! H Shares ' 728809817 (L) Interest of corporation controlled by 42.46% 2.47%
the substantial Shareholder
China COSCO Shipping Corporation Limited A Shares 432171843 (L) Interest of corporation controlled by 34.25% 14.51%
("China COSCO Shipping") 2 the substantial Sharenolder
H Shares 245,842,181(L)  Interest of corporation controlled by 14.32% 8.25%
the substantial Sharenolder
Hony Group Management Limitec® H Shares 358,251,896 (L) Interest of corporation controlled by 2087% 12.03%
the substantial Shareholder
Broad Ride Limitec? H Shares 215203846 (L) Beneficial owner 12.50% 7.23%
H Shares 143,048,050 (L) Person having security interest in 8.33% 4.80%
shares
Promotor Holdings Limited H Shares 143,048,050 (L) Beneficial owner 8.33% 4.80%
Templeton Asset Management Ltd. H Shares 97,132,767 (1) Investment manager 5.66% 3.26%

(L Long Position

Note 1: CM Group, through various subsidiaries (including China Merchants Port Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China Merchants Holdings
(International) Company Limited), and China Merchants (CIMC) Investment Limited etc.) had an interest in the H Shares of the Company, and all the
728,809,817 H Shares (long position) were held in the capacity as interest of corporation controlled by the substantial Shareholder.

Note 2: China COSCO Shipping, through various subsidiaries (including China Shipping (Group) Company, China Shipping Container Lines Co., Ltd., Long Honour
Investment Limited and COSCO Container Industries Limited etc.), had an interest in the A Shares and H Shares of the Company, and 432,171,843 A
Shares and 245,842,181 H Shares (long position) were held in the capacity as interest of corporation controlled by the substantial Shareholder.

Note 3: Hony Group Management Limited, through various subsidiaries (including Broad Ride Limited), had an interest in the H Shares of the Company, and
215,203,846 H Shares (long position) were held in the capacity as interest of corporation controlled by the substantial Shareholder and 143,048,050 H
Shares were held in the capacity as person having security interest in shares.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 30 June 2016, no other person (other
than a Director, Supervisor or senior management of the Company) had any interests recorded in the register
of interests in shares and short positions required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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IV. CHANGES OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS, CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

OR DE FACTO CONTROLLER

Change of Controlling Shareholders during the Reporting Period
O Applicable +/ Not applicable

There is no controlling Shareholder of the Company, no change during the Reporting Period.

Change of the De Facto Controller during the Reporting Period
O Applicable +/ Not applicable

There is no de facto controller of the Company, no change during the Reporting Period.

Substantial Shareholders
The substantial Shareholders of the Company are CM Group and China COSCO Shipping.

CM Group was incorporated on 14 October 1986 in the PRC. Its registered capital is RMB10,050 million and
its chairman of the board of directors is Li Jianhong. CM Group’s three core business sectors focus on the
construction, operation and service in respect of transportation and related infrastructure (ports, toll roads,
energy transportation and logistics), financial investment and management, property development and
management. As of the end of the Reporting Period, CM Group, the first largest substantial shareholder of the
Company, through its subsidiaries (including China Merchants Port Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as
China Merchants Holdings (International) Company Limited) and China Merchants (CIMC) Investment Limited etc.)
held 24.47% of the issued shares of the Company.

China COSCO Shipping was incorporated on 5 February 2016 in the PRC. Its registered capital is RMB11 billion
and its legal representative is Xu Lirong. China COSCO Shipping will take shipping, integrated logistics and related
financial service as the pillar to provide global integrated logistics supply chain services among various industrial
clusters. As of the end of the Reporting Period, China COSCO Shipping, the second largest substantial shareholder
of the Company, through its subsidiaries (including China Shipping (Group) Company, China Shipping Container
Lines Co., Ltd., Long Honour Investment Limited and COSCO Container Industries Limited etc.) held 22.76% of the
issued shares of the Company.

Except for the abovementioned CM Group and China COSCO Shipping, no other legal person or individual holds
10% or more of the total issued share capital of the Company (excluding HKSCC Nominees Limited).
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4. Shareholding Relationships between the Company and the Substantial Shareholders
as of the end of the Reporting Period

100%

v

China COSCO Shipping
Corporation Limited

100%
A

China Shipping (Group)
Company

39.02%
A

China Shipping Container
Lines Co., Ltd.

100%

A
China Shipping
Container Lines
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited

A

State-owned Assets

Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council

100%

A

China Merchants
Group Limited

A

54.95%

China Merchants

Company Limited

Holdings (International)

100%

A

LONG HONOUR 00%

COSCO Container

China Merchants (CIMC)

INVESTMENTS Industries Limited Investment Limited Other A Shareholders Other H Shareholders
LIMITED
0.85% 21.91% 24.47% 27.86% 24.91%
The Company

V. SHARE PURCHASING PLAN PROPOSED OR IMPLEMENTED BY SHAREHOLDERS
OR PERSONS ACTING IN CONCERT WITH THEM DURING THE REPORTING

PERIOD

\ Applicable O Not applicable
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China Merchants Port Holdings Company Limited

(formerly known as China Merchants Holdings

(International) Company Limited) Hshares  Notapplicable  Not applicable 41,530,100 139%  Notapplicable  Not applicable
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VI. REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries did not repurchase, sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

VIl. SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the public information available to the Company and as far as the Board of the Company were aware,

the Directors confirm that, the minimum public float of the Company as at the date of this Report has satisfied
the requirements of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

VIIl. RELEVANT INFORMATION ABOUT PREFERRED SHARES

O Applicable + Not applicable

The Company has never issued preferred shares.
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CHANGES ON SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

\ Applicable O Not applicable
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Liu Xuebin  president  Current A Shares 100,000 28,000 0 128,000 0 0 0

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN THE
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION THEREOF

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short positions held by the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of
Company in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO which are required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests
and short positions which the Directors or Supervisors of the Company are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified by the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in accordance with the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules, were as follows:

1. Interest in the Shares of the Company:
N N%ﬂ* s )"
Na“;, NG & . ;Lﬂ iﬁ Caik cK™a JEE sg“afgég"ﬂf@
Mai Boliang Beneficial interest A Shares 494,702
2. Interest in the Underlying Shares of the Company:

For details of the interests in the underlying shares of the Company held by Directors, Supervisors and the chief
executive of the Company as of 30 June 2016, please refer to “VII. Implementation and Effect of the Company'’s
Share Option Incentive Scheme” under “Chapter V Significant Events” in this Report.
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Interests in the Shares of Associated Corporations of the Company:
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Mai Boliang CIMC Vehicle (Group) Co., Limited Beneficiary of a trust 10,350,000
Mai Boliang CIMC Enric Beneficial interest 3,260,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, as far as the Directors of the Company are aware, none of the
Directors, Supervisors and the chief executive held any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) of the Company and any of its associated
corporations, which are required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions which are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange under the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE
COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company are set

out below:

N3 Plly . £ TV D3y Re g8
Wang Hong Chairman and Non-executive Director  Election 31 May 2016 Re-election
Vice Chairman and Retirement upon Retirement upon

Zhang Liang Non-executive Director expiry of the term 31 May 2016 expiry of the term

Mai Boliang Executive Director Election 31 May 2016 Re-election
Retirement upon Retirement upon

Wu Shuxiong Non-executive Director expiry of the term 31 May 2016 expiry of the term

Pan Chengwei  Independent Non-executive Director  Election 31 May 2016 Re-election

Wang Guixun Independent Non-executive Director  Election 31 May 2016 Re-election
Retirement upon Retirement upon

Li Kejun Independent Non-executive Director expiry of the term 31 May 2016 expiry of the term
Retirement upon Retirement upon

He Jiale Chief Supervisor expiry of the term 31 May 2016 expiry of the term
Retirement upon Retirement upon

Wang Zhixian Supervisor expiry of the term 31 May 2016 expiry of the term

Xiong Bo Supervisor Election 31 May 2016 Re-election

Vice Chairman and

Wang Yuhang  Non-executive Director Election 31 May 2016 Election

Wang Zhixian Non-executive Director Election 31 May 2016 Election

Liu Chong Non-executive Director Election 31 May 2016 Election

Pan Zhengqi Independent Non-executive Director  Election 31 May 2016 Election

Lin Wuliu Supervisor Election 31 May 2016 Election

Zhang Mingwen  Supervisor Election 31 May 2016 Election

Zeng Beihua

Yang Rong

General Manager of Fund
Management Department

General Manager of Fund
Management Department

Retirement upon
expiry of the term

Appointment

28 March 2016

28 March 2016

Retirement upon
expiry of the term

Appointment
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During the Reporting Period, Board and Supervisory Board completed re-election successfully respectively.
For details, please refer to “The Board” and “The Supervisory Committee” in “Il. Corporate Governance” under
"Chapter V Significant Events” in this Report and the relevant announcement published on China Securities
Journal, Securities Times, Shanghai Securities News, Cninfo website (www.cninfo.com.cn), on the websites of
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.cimc.com) on 1 June 2016.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

There is no change in information of the current Directors and the current Supervisors of the Company during
the Reporting Period. The details of their biographies and job status in Shareholders’” Company were published
in China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News and Securities Times and on Cninfo website (http://www.
cninfo.com.cn), the Company’s website (http://www.cimc.com) and the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) on 9 April 2016.
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[.  AUDIT REPORT

Whether the interim report has been audited or not

O Yes NoO

The 2016 interim financial report of the Company has not been audited.

[I.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the period from 1 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

The unit used in the notes to the financial statements is: RMB thousand.

consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)

[\
30) 4 31 December
Note 2016 2015
A§SETS
C £ 350l
Cash at bank and on hand V.1 5,041,751 4,487,166
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss V.2 144,998 133,294
Notes receivable V.3 870,776 1,369,632
Accounts receivable V.4 11,461,760 10,667,049
Advance to suppliers V.6 2,355,154 3,290,194
Interest receivable 8,708 10,842
Dividend receivable 8,968 12,345
Other receivables V.5 3,918,654 3,253,650
Inventories V.7 17,229,834 16,416,646
Current portion of non-current assets V.8 3,262,995 3,228,668
OtherAcurrent assets V.9 672,933 660,839
Tea vy f 3900 44,976,531 43,530,325
N £r" o £ 3B
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss V.2 14,581 19,755
Available-for-sale financial assets V.10 464,687 420,858
Long-term receivables V.11 14,525,793 12,734,564
Long-term equity investments V.12 2,001,007 2,036,367
Investment properties V.13 507,971 438,814
Fixed assets V.14 21,574,273 21,848,053
Construction in progress V.15 21,682,665 17,040,388
Disposal of fixed assets V.16 153,854 99,506
Intangible assets V.17 4,900,208 4,983,558
Development costs V.17 41,076 22,966
Goodwill V.18 2,382,436 1,762,141
Long-term prepaid expenses V.19 314,602 165,711
Deferred tax assets V.20 1,135,169 1,194,462
Other non—gurrent assets V.21 125,064 465,703
Tea £ 4v £ 3800 69,823,386 63,232,846
TOTAL ASSETS 114,799,917 106,763,171
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consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

As at 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

'\
30) 4 31 December
Note 2016 2015
LI&BILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
C .y aaypgl
Short-term borrowings V.24 18,155,292 17,909,024
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss V.25 120,442 250,769
Notes payable V.26 1,857,003 1,749,077
Accounts payable V.27 9,943,237 8,893,005
Advances from customers V.28 3,310,861 2,763,511
Employee benefits payable V.29 1,784,053 2,234,271
Taxes payable V.30 594,169 923,137
Interest payable V.31 115,691 216,374
Dividends payable V.32 698,471 56,034
Other payables V.33 5,624,500 5,285,014
Provisions V.34 1,002,498 875,498
Current portion of non-current liabilities V.35 801,887 4,765,523
OtherAcurrent liabilities V.36 4,053,786 -
Ty a 5‘4,4 —a <yg% 48,061,890 45,921,237
N £ f sy gl
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss V.25 54,400 55,471
Long-term borrowings V.37 29,041,014 23,684,838
Long-term payables V.38 621,201 550,136
Payables for specific projects V.39 4,961 5,834
Deferred income V.40 578,559 511,662
Deferred tax liabilities V.20 521,322 467,482
Other non—purrent liabilities V.41 1,562,882 71,635
Tea £ A 4 3y gB 32,384,339 25,347,058
Tya -2yl - 80,446,229 71,268,295
S8y ey p)
Share capital V.42 2,978,359 2,977,820
Other equity instruments V.43 1,981,143 2,033,043
Capital surplus V.44 3,127,388 3,181,863
Other comprehensive income V.45 (243,364) (518,130)
Surplus reserve V.46 3,203,578 3,203,578
Undistr'lbuted profi}s V.47 16,578,389 17,663,145
Tga s’ 5,\, R w,.r'; Ay sHBL S 4B 4 T34 27,625,493 28,541,319
ML 4y € sBE 6,728,195 6,953,557
Tyd ' 4y . 34,353,688 35,494,876
Tya a4y gladsfa, ™ 0, 'ﬂ, 114,799,917 106,763,171

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The person in charge The person in charge of
of the Company: WANG Hong accounting affairs: JIN Jianlong

The head of the accounting

department: JIN Jianlong
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Chapter Vi

Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2016

(All amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)

'\
30J) 4 31 December
Note 2016 2015
A%
C £ 800
Cash at bank and on hand XVI1 1,274,775 1,597,446
Dividends receivable XVI.2 4,780,271 4,604,445
Other receivables XVI.3 12,867,911 12,363,102
Other current assets 12,511 16,264
Tya v 4 3800 18,935,468 18,581,257
N 42", £ 3BeD
Available-for-sale financial assets XVI.4 388,905 388,905
Long-term equity investments XVI.5 8,522,688 8,509,530
Fixed assets 104,967 106,808
Construction in progress 3,928 4,031
Intangible assets 14,595 14,724
Long-term prepaid expenses 12,353 14,782
Deferred tax assets XVI.13 188,480 216,448
'S
Tya LA 4 38R 9,235,916 9,255,228
Tya g8feR 28,171,384 27,836,485
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Chapter VIII

Balance Sheet (Continued)
As at 30 June 2016

(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)

[\
30) 4 31 December
Note 2016 2015
L+t gBa4, 50, pol'y 4Y
C . pfaxygll
Short-term borrowings 4,220,000 =
Accounts payable 5,678 15,837
Employee benefits payable XVI.7 741,651 851,536
Taxes payable XVI.8 4,195 12,820
Interest payable XVI1.9 19,742 129,200
Dividends payable 658,306 =
Other payables XVI.10 7,756,556 7,583,245
Currept portion of non-current liabilities XVI.11 600,000 4,059,881
Tya 5'4,4: a4y gl 14,006,128 12,652,519
N £ asygl
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss XVI.6 12,270 14,256
Long-term borrowings XVI.12 1,821,000 2,215,000
Deferred income 18,300 13,800
Tya £ A 4 asy g8 1,851,570 2,243,056
Tya aspgl 15,857,698 14,895,575
Sy sy 4y
Share capital V.42 2,978,359 2,977,820
Capital surplus 1,981,143 2,033,043
Other equity instruments XVI.14 3,285,069 3,279,575
Other comprehensive income XVI.15 43,754 43,754
Surplus reserve V.46 3,203,578 3,203,578
Undistr'lbuted profits 821,783 1,403,140
Tya e’ 4Y . 12,313,686 12,940,910
Tea a<pgfad Sa, ™ 4sly ) 28,171,384 27,836,485

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The person in charge
of the Company: WANG Hong

The person in charge of
accounting affairs: JIN Jianlong

The head of the accounting
department: JIN Jianlong
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consolidated Income Statement

Chapter VIl Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

F o4 % For the
oy /T Period from
1 Ja‘)%‘h . 1 January to
Note 30) 4 2016 30 June 2015
. RAZ, V.48 23,542,843 32,637,289
Less: Cost of sales V.48 19,126,496 27,519,280
Taxes and surcharges V.49 194,236 148,211
Selling and distribution expenses IV.50 1,036,129 1,265,718
General and administrative expenses V.51 1,982,301 2,219,357
Financial expenses-net V.52 304,944 217,131
Asset impairment losses V.56 1,267,501 135,530
Add: (Loss)/profit from changes in fair value V.54 137,104 149,699
Investment Income IV.55 (87,328) 744,983
Including: Share of profit/(losses) of associates
and joint ventures 13,800 159,794
. 0 ug . £ r4 (318,988) 2,026,744
Add: Non-operating income V.57 167,289 82,542
Including: Profits on disposal of non-current assets ‘ 6,153 H 5,514 ‘
Less: Non-operating expenses V.58 14,145 31,808
Including: Losses on disposal of non-current assets ‘ 9,485 H 23,891 ‘
. Tga -4 (165,844) 2,077,478
Less: Income tax expenses V.59 375,316 425,068
V. N‘ R (541,160) 1,652,410
Attributable to equity holders of the Company (378,034) 1,518,195
Minority interests (163,126) 134,215
V. G 3orTun belh 4 T B8E), 4 iy an V.45 328,231 (63,823)
Attributable to shareholders and other equity holders
of the Company 274,766 (51,516)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 274,766 (51,516)
Change in value of available-for-sale financial assets 949 (2,183)
Gain of cash flow hedges (490) 5,256
Currency translation differences 274,307 (54,589)
Minority interests 53,465 (12,307)
VI Tea v Moo bdld 4T (212,929) 1,588,587
Attributable to equity holders of the Company (103,268) 1,466,679
Minority interests (109,661) 121,908
VIl. Ea £4B . sBa,
(1) B§§ic earnings per share (RMB) V.60 (0.1444) 0.5681
(I) Diluted earnings per share (RMB) V.60 (0.1444) 0.5627

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The person in charge
of the Company: WANG Hong

The person in charge of

accounting affairs: JIN Jianlong

The head of the accounting

department: JIN Jianlong
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Chapter Vi

Income Statement

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)

F o4 % For the

P - Period from

1 Ja‘};yt . 1 January to

Note 30)J 4 2016 30 June 2015

I n,iA_ XVI.16 69,104 149,885
Less: Cost of sales XVI.16 24,006 -

Tax and surcharges 3,373 12,340
General and administrative expenses 109,800 247,610
Financial expenses-net (99,572) 164,841

Add: Profit/(losses) from changes in fair value XVI.17 1,985 (77,854)
Investment income XVI.18 118,963 121,809

. 0 4yq. £ ri (80 152,445 (230,951)
Add: Non-operating income XVI.19 1,137 7,334
Including: Profits on disposal of non-current assets ‘ 116 H -

Less: Non-operating Expenses 249 262
Including: Losses on disposal of non-current assets ‘ 1 H 62

. Tga -4 ( &X) 153,333 (223,879)
Less:Income tax expenses XVI.20 27,968 (49,364)

IV. Ng -4 (580 125,365 (174,515)
V. Q3+ Tupdelh 4T 4  han XV1.15 -
VI Tea v Moo 384 4T 125,365 (174,515)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The person in charge
of the Company: WANG Hong

The person in charge of
accounting affairs: JIN Jianlong

The head of the accounting

department:JIN Jianlong
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Chapter VIl Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)

consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

F o4 % For the

T e Period from

1 Ja‘[aﬂh R 1 January to

Note 30)J 4 2016 30 June 2015

l. ng\[ }\gg /- ‘“"“Akh‘ a FA_‘ﬂEZ
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Chapter VIII

Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)

consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

F o4 % For the
Ppege /T Period from
1 Ja‘};Lh . 1 January to
Note 30)J 4 2016 30 June 2015
. gl LB/ T bl L ay B
Cash received from capital’contributions 1,542,157 48,785
Including: Cash received from capital contributions by
minority shareholders of subsidiaries 1,518,444 48,785
Cash received from borrowings 79,171,819 59,806,957
Cash received relating to other financing activities IV.61(4) 2,428 2,150,000
s" 4 qa /vgi~4 L@ 80,716,404 62,005,742
Cash repayments of borrowings 73,846,942 54,798,438
Cash payments for interest expenses and
distribution of dividends or profits 1,178,176 902,078
Including: Cash payments for dividends or profit to
minority shareholders of subsidiaries 47,147 148,919
Cash payments relating to other financing activities IV.61(5) 120,376 125,113
WG ATAT 75,145,494 55,825,629
Ng 88y LBLL LB/ T b £ agty gl 5,570,910 6,180,113
IV. Ejjpy /iy 4,\."3‘4* Ay f‘g‘x*z  ALgBal
g8, _/a, g8 (76,929) (17,509)
V. Npg sty -£rgl~ald g8y, ‘a2, 4B IV.62(1) 1,051,436 621,724
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,259,123 2,758,310
V. Cai~al vgl, Ja, 40q L | 4 . V.62(3) 4,310,559 3,380,034

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The person in charge
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Chapter Vil

Cash Flow Statement

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Interim Financial Report (Unaudited)

F. ¢ } For the
| POy S W Period from
1JgLayy . 1 January to

Note 30) 4 2016  30June 2015
L g™~ LB/ T g £ ap-lp gl
Cash recelved from sales o goods or rendering of services 74,196 136,694
Cgsh received relating to other operating activities 3,026,963 9,800,681
S g4a ./vg8- 4 LB 3,101,159 9,937,375
Cash paid for goods and services 38,246 -
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 153,809 52,924
Payments of taxes and surcharges 27,955 23,689
Cgsh paid relating to gther operating activities 3,246,351 10,471,405
S 4qa /gl ';; L 3,466,361 10,548,018
Ng 888 Vg7 V) T 4_4 ayp- gl XV1.21 (365,202) (610,643)
. Cal™~; LB/ "L £ ap Ll
Cash received from dlspos of investments 155,458
Cash received from returns on investments 8,000 118,681
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets 2,261 800
Ngt cash received from disposal of subsidiaries 315,000
S 448 ./90 4 L8 10,261 589,939
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets and other long-term assets 6,962 1,453
Cish paid to acquire @veitments 82,315
S - ta i tgg\ t SE 6,962 83,768
N .gg\ 4' LBy i LB M.A,mg ap- 50 3,299 506,171
. CaB™~j LB N b L ay by B
Cash rece|ved from borrowings 4,426,000 795,000
Cash received from capital contributions 23,712 -
Cgsh received relating to other financing activities 2,000,000
S yga /vgf~4 LB 4,449,712 2,795,000
Cash repayments of borrowings 4,061,000 2,392,000
Cash payments for interest expenses and
distribution of dividends or profits 349,716 329,985
Cgsh payments relatirlg to other financing activities 30,530
S gqa /g~ ;L8 4,410,716 2,752,515
Ny .gg‘:,(: LBy LB [ AL L ay Ky g 38,996 42,485
V. E“ri ‘ ' ?,‘A* 4 v‘-aﬂA.bE Avg@‘al
g® \;,/ t:;, 182 849
Vo Ny Gprpdf) b, 38, £g8-ad g8 1,/ “Aa, 48 xvI21 (322,725) (61,138)
Add: cash and cash equalents at begmmng of year 652,865 831,212
VI. Cgli™~al, vgB™, a+4® 3 30 4 2013 XVI.21 330,140 770,074

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The person in charge
of the Company: WANG Hong

The person in charge of

accounting affairs: JIN Jianlong

The head of the accounting

department: JIN Jianlong
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China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(Al amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
English Translation for Reference Only

GENERAL INFORMATION

China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), formerly “China International Marine
Containers Co., Ltd.”, was a Sino-foreign joint venture set up by China Merchants Group, the East Asiatic
Company (Denmark) and Ocean Containers Inc. (USA). In December 1992, as approved by “Shen Fu Ban Fu [1992]
1736" issued by the General Office of the People’s Government of Shenzhen and “Shen Ren Yin Fu Zi (1992) 261"
issued by Shenzhen Special Economic Zone Branch of People’s Bank of China, the Company was restructured
as an incorporated company set up by directional subscription and was renamed as “China International Marine
Containers Co., Ltd.” by the original corporate shareholders of the Company. On 31 December 1993 and 17
January 1994 respectively, the Company issued ordinary shares denominated in Renminbi for domestic investors
(A Shares) and for foreign shares issued domestically (B Shares), and commenced trading on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Pursuant to “Shen Fu Ban Fu [1993] 925" issued by the General Office of the People’s Government
of Shenzhen and “Shen Zheng Ban Fu [1994] 22" issued by Shenzhen Securities Administration Office On 1
December 1995, as approved by the State Administration of Industry and Commerce, the Company changed its
name to “China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd". The Registered Address and Address of Head
Office of the company is 8th Floor, CIMC R&D Centre, 2 Gangwan Avenue, Shekou, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong, PRC.

Oon 19 December 2012, the Company’'s domestically listed foreign shares (B shares) changed listing location
and went publication on the main market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong through the way of introduction.
Henceforth, all the company’s B shares converted to overseas listed foreign shares (H shares).

As at 30 June 2016, the company has settled the equity private placement with 286,096,100 H shares to COSCO
Container Industries Co., Ltd., Broad Ride Limited and promotor Holdings Limited, the price of this private
placement is HKD13.48 each share (equivalent to RMB11.28), the overall funding raised is HKD3,856,575,000
(equivalent to RMB3,227,639,000), and all funding has been collected before 30 June 2016. Please refer to Note
IV.42 for details of the share capital.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are the
manufacturing of modern transportation facilities, facilities for energy, food, chemistry and rendering of relative
services. Detailed activities are the manufacturing and repairing of containers and other relevant business;
utilizing the Group's equipment to process and manufacture various parts, structure components and relevant
machines, providing cutting, punching, moulding, riveting surface treatment (including sand/paint spraying,
welding and assembly) and other processing services; developing, manufacturing and selling of various high-tech
and high performance special vehicles and semi-trailers; leasing of containers; developing, production and sales
of high-end fuel gas equipments such as pressure container and compressor; providing integrated services for
natural gas distribution; production of static container and pot-type wharf equipments and providing EP+CS
(engineering procurement and construction supervision) technical service for the storage and processing of LNG,
LPG and other petrochemical gases. Apart from the above, the Group is also engaged in manufacturing of logistic
equipment and related services, marine projects, railway trucks production and property development, etc.

CIMC Enric Holdings Limited, the subsidiary of the Group, is listed in the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The principal activities of Enric are the design, development, manufacturing, engineering and
sales of, and the provision of technical maintenance service for, a wide spectrum of transportation, storage and
processing equipment that is widely used in energy, chemical and liquid food industries.

Pteris Global Limited, the subsidiary of the Group, is listed on the mainboard of the Catalist of Singapore
Exchange Ltd. The principal activities of the Pteris Global Ltd are electrical products used in airports and ports,
automatic parking system and equipment, automation logistics warehousing system and equipment, airport
equipment (aviation food vehicles, self-propelled aircraft deicing vehicle, anti ice, container, pallet loaders,
spreading vehicle, snowplows, friction coefficient test vehicle), installation and after sale service of self-produced
products and agents product and provide parking management services.



Interim Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
English Translation for Reference Only

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Please refer to Note VI for details of subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation and also refer to Note V.1
for the details of subsidiaries newly included in the scope of consolidation. Please refer to Note V.2 for the details
of subsidiaries excluded from the scope of consolidation.

This financial statements have been approved for announcement by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30
August 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

The Group makes specific accounting policies and accounting estimates according to characteristics of its
business operations, which include provision of bad debt of receivables (Note 11.10), the cost of inventories (Note
I1.11), the criteria for determining impairment of non-current assets (Note 11.20), depreciation policy of investment
properties, fixed assets and amortisation policy of intangible assets (Note 11.13, 14 and 17), measurement of
provisions (Note 11.21) and revenue recognition (Note 11.23), etc.

Key judgments applied for critical accounting policies by the Group are disclosed in Note 11.33.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Basic Standard and specific standards of the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006, the
Application Guidance for Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Interpretations of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and other relevant regulations issued (hereafter collectively referred to as
‘the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises’ or ‘CAS’) and the disclosure requirements in the Preparation
Convention of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public No.15 — General Rules on
Financial Reporting (2010 revised) issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The new “Companies Ordinance” of Hong Kong has commenced operation In the period. Some notes in this
financial statement have been adjusted according to requirements the ordinance.

Statement of compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 30 June 2016 are in compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and truly and completely present the financial position of the

Consolidated and the Company as of as at 30 June 2016 and of their financial performance, cash flows and other
information for the period then ended.

Accounting year

The Company’s accounting year starts from 1 January to 31 December.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Recording currency

Functional currency is determined by the Company and its subsidiaries on the basis of the currency in which
major income and costs are denominated and settled.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries domiciled in PRC are Renminbi. Hong Kong and
the overseas subsidiaries use local currencies as their functional currencies. Foreign currencies are defined as
currency other than functional currency.

Financial statements of the Company are presented in Renminbi. For subsidiaries using currencies other than
Renminbi as their functional currencies, the Company translates the financial statements of these subsidiaries
into Renminbi (see Note 11.8).

Business combinations

Business combinations involving enterprises under common control

A business combination involving enterprises under common control is a business combination in which all of the
combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business
combination, and that control is not transitory. The assets and liabilities obtained are measured at the carrying
amounts as recorded by the enterprise being combined at the combination date. The difference between the
carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the carrying amount of consideration paid for the combination (or
the total face value of shares issued) is adjusted to capital premium in the capital reserve. If the balance of the
capital premium is insufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained earnings. Any costs directly attributable to the
combination shall be recognised in profit or loss for the current period when occurred. The combination date is
the date on which one combining enterprise effectively obtains control of the other combining enterprises.

Business combinations involving enterprises not under common control

A business combination involving enterprises not under common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination. Where 1) the aggregate of the fair value at the acquisition date of assets transferred
(including the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquiree, exceeds 2) the acquirer’s interest in the
fair value at the acquisition date of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised as goodwill
(see Note 11.18). When 1) is less than 2), the difference is recognised in profit or loss for the current period. The
costs of the issuance of equity or debt securities as a part of the consideration paid for the acquisition are
included as a part of initial recognition amount of the equity or debt securities. Other direct acquisition-related
costs arising from the business combination are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets transferred is recognised
in profit or loss. The acquiree’s identifiable asset, liabilities and contingent liabilities, if satisfying the recognition
criteria, are recognised by the Group at their fair value at the acquisition date. The acquisition date is the date on
which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Control means the group has rights in the invested entity, and could
gain returns through its involvement with the entity as well as has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The financial position, financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control, the financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
financial statements as if the combination had occurred at the date that the ultimate controlling party first
obtained control. The opening balances and the comparative figures of the consolidated financial statements are
also restated. In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities
based on their carrying amounts are included in the consolidated balance sheet, and financial performance is
included in the consolidated income statement, respectively, from the date that the ultimate parent company of
the Company obtains the control of the subsidiary to be consolidated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business combination involving
enterprises not under common control, the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date that control commences, base on the fair value of those
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

For a business combination not involving enterprises under common control and achieved in stages, the Group
remeasures its previously-held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair value at the acquisition date. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount is recognised as investment income for the current
period; the amount recognised in other comprehensive income relating to the previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree is reclassified as investment income for the current period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Owners’ equity of subsidiaries, profit or loss and comprehensive income not attributable to the Company are
recorded as minority interests, profit or loss attributable to minority shareholders and comprehensive income
attributable to minority shareholders, respectively, and are presented separately within the items of owners’
equity, net profit and total comprehensive income in the consolidated financial statements.

When the amount of loss for the current period attributable to the minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds
the minority shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of shareholders’ equity of the subsidiary, the excess is
allocated against the minority interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the
Company makes necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based on the Company’s
Own accounting period or accounting policies.

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and unrealised profits are eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements. The portion of a subsidiary’s equity and the portion of a subsidiary’s net profit and loss for the period
as well as comprehensive income not attributable to Company are recognised as minority interests, net profit
and loss attributable to minority interests as well as and comprehensive income attributable to minority interests
presented separately in the consolidated financial statements within equity and net profit as well as total
comprehensive income respectively. The unrealised profit and loss arising from sales of assets to subsidiaries by
the Company are fully eliminated against net profit attributable to owners of the Company. The unrealised profit
and loss arising from sales of assets to the Company by subsidiaries are eliminated against net profit attributable
to owners of the Company as well as net profit attributable to minority interests respectively according to the
Company and minority interests’ shareholding on the subsidiaries. The unrealized profit and loss arising from
sales of between subsidiaries are eliminated against net profit attributable to owners of the Company as well as
net profit attributable to minority interests respectively according to the Company and minority interests’ share
holdings on the subsidiary who sells.

The difference on recognising a same transaction between on the accounting subjects of the Group and of the
Company or its subsidiaries would be adjusted on the accounting subject of the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits that can be readily drawn on demand, and
short-term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency transactions and translation of financial statements denominated
in foreign currency

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from investors, the capital is translated to functional
currency at the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign currency transactions are, on initial
recognition, translated to functional currency at the rates that approximate the spot exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.

A spot exchange rate is an exchange rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China. A rate that approximates the
spot exchange rate is a rate determined under a systematic and rational method, normally the average exchange
rate of the current period or the weighted average exchange rate.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated to functional currency at the spot exchange
rate at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences, except for those arising from the principal
and interest of specific foreign currency borrowings for the purpose of acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets (see Note 11.16), are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated to functional currency using the foreign exchange
rate at the transaction date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined; the resulting
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss, except for the differences arising from the translation of
available-for-sale financial assets, which are recognised as other comprehensive income. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash presented separately in the cash flow statement.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated to functional currency at the spot exchange rates at
the balance sheet date. The equity items, excluding “Retained earnings”, are translated to functional currency at
the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. The income and expenses of foreign operation are translated to
functional currency at the rates that approximate the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. The resulting
translation differences are recognised in a separate component of equity. Upon disposal of a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount of the translation differences recognised in equity which relates to that foreign operation
is transferred to profit or loss in the period in which the disposal occurs. The cash flows of overseas operations
are translated at the spot exchange rates on the dates of the cash flows. The effect of exchange rate changes on
cash presented separately in the cash flow statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash at bank and on hand, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, investments in equity securities other than long-term equity
investments, payables, loans, borrowings and debentures payables.

Financial Assets

@)

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories at initial recognition: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity investments. The
classification of financial assets depends on the Group’s intention and ability to hold the financial assets.

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for the purpose of
selling in short term.

b. Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

C. Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at fair value on the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, the related transaction costs incurred at the time of acquisition are recognised in profit or loss for
the current period. For other financial assets, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets are included in their initial recognition amounts.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value. Investments in
equity instruments are measured at cost when they do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gain or loss arising from change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Interests and cash dividends received during the period in which such financial
assets are held, as well as the gains or losses arising from disposal of these assets are recognised in profit
or loss for the current period.

Accumulated fair value adjustments of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in equity except
impairment and exchange gains and losses of foreign currency financial assets. When available-for-sale
financial assets are disrecognised, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method and cash dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments when the group'’s right to
receive payments is established are recognised in the income statement as part of other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of financial assets other than those at fair value through profit or
loss at each balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired, the Group
determines the amount of impairment loss.

Objective evidence indicating a financial asset is impaired represents matters actually happen subsequently
to the initial recognition of the financial assets and exert influences the financial assets’ estimated future
cash flows which can be reliably measured by the Group.

Evidence of held-to-maturity equity instrument is impaired comprises a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its cost. The Group assesses
all available-for-sale financial assets on an individual basis at each balance sheet date. Impairment loss
should be recognised if the fair value of an equity instrument has is than 50% (50% inclusive) of its initial
investment cost or in the case that the fair value has been less than the initial investment cost for more
than one year (one year inclusive). The Group will consider other relevant factors, such as the price
volatility, to determine whether an impairment loss should be recognised for the equity instrument if the
decline in the fair value of an equity instrument is more than 20% (20% inclusive) but less than 50% of its
initial investment cost. The initial investment cost of held-to-maturity equity instrument is calculated using
the weighted average method.

When an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at amortised cost has occurred, the amount of loss
is measured at the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of its estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). If there is objective evidence
that the value of the financial asset recovered and the recovery is related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed and the
amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

85



86

China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
English Translation for Reference Only

(M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

(©

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss arising from decline in fair value
that has been recognised directly in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. If, after an impairment loss has
been recognised on an available-for-sale debt instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument increases in
a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or 10ss. An impairment 10ss recognised
for an investment in an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale is reversed through equity.

When an impairment loss on an available-for-sale financial asset has occurred, the amount of loss is
measured at the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of its estimated
future cash flows determined according to the market yield of similar financial assets and recognised in
profit or loss. Once the above asset impairment 10ss is recognised, it will not be reversed in the subsequent
periods.

Finance lease receivables are regarded as ordinary receivables when derecognised and impaired.
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial assets is derecognised when one of the below criteria is met:

= the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire;

- the financial asset has been transferred and the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset to the transferee; or

- the financial asset has been transferred and the Group has not retained control of the financial asset,
although the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration
received and the cumulative changes in fair value that had been recognised directly in equity, is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories at initial recognition: financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The financial liabilities of the Group are mainly other financial
liabilities, including payables, borrowings and debentures payable.

Payables, including accounts payable and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings and debentures payable are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities with maturities no more than one year are classified as current liabilities. Other financial
liabilities with maturities over one year but are due within one year (inclusive) at the balance sheet date are
classified as the current portion of non-current liabilities. Others are classified as non-current liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognised or partly derecognised when the current obligation is discharged or partly
discharged. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability or the derecognised part of the
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Determination of fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument that is traded in an active market is determined at the quoted price in
the active market. The fair value of a financial instrument that is not traded in an active market is determined
by using an appropriate valuation technique that is applicable to current circumstances and supported by
sufficient available data and other information. Valuation techniques mainly include market approach and income
approach. When applying valuation techniques, inputs used by market participants in the transactions of the
assets or liabilities with similar characteristics would be used and observable inputs would be given priority to
the extent possible. Unobservable inputs would only be used when it is impossible or impracticable to obtain
relevant observable inputs.

Equity instrument

AN equity instrument is a contract that proves the ownership interest of the assets after deducting all liabilities in
the Group.

The consideration received from the issuance of equity instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity.

Consideration and transaction costs paid by the Group for repurchasing self-issued equity instruments are
deducted from shareholders’ equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Receivables

Receivables comprise of accounts receivable and other receivables. Accounts receivable arising from sale of
goods or rendering of services are initially recognised at fair value of the contractual payments from the buyers
or service recipients.

Receivables are assessed for impairment both on an individual basis and on a collective group basis.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated
as the excess of its carrying amount over the present value of the estimated future cash flows (exclusive of
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate. All impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables share similar credit risk characteristics (including those
having not been individually assessed as impaired), based on their historical loss experiences, and adjusted by
the observable figures reflecting present economic conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on receivables, there is objective evidences of a recovery
in value of the financial asset which can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss will not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Receivables that are individually significant and impairment provided on an individual basis

Criteria of provision for receivable that Individually significant receivables are the receivables with the
are individually significant and impairment individual amount over RMB10 million (inclusive) or accounting
provided on an individual basis. to 5% or more of the total receivables.

Method of provision for receivable that  An impairment loss is calculated as the excess of its carrying

are individually significant and impairment amount over the present value of the estimated future cash

provided on an individual basis. flows (exclusive of future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Receivable that are individually insignificant but impairment provided on an individual basis

Criteria of provision for receivables that are Within the receivables whose amounts are individually

individually insignificant but impairment insignificant, impairment is assessed on an individual basis for

provided on an individual basis. the overdue receivables unpaid after collection efforts or with
unique characteristics.

Method of provision for receivable that are An impairment loss is calculated as the excess of its carrying

individually insignificant but impairment amount over the present value of the estimated future cash

provided on an individual basis. flows (exclusive of future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Receivables (Continued)

Receivables that are assessed for impairment on a collective group basis

For receivables that have not been individually assessed as impaired in (1) and (2), further assessment is made
collectively on a group basis with receivables that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Determination method of the group Accounts receivable are divided into seven groups of containers,

based on credit risk characteristics vehicles, energy, chemistry and liquid food equipment, offshore
engineering, airport facilities, other business and amounts due from
related parties, land lease prepayments and operating deposits
according to the industry and business nature of customers and
the characteristics of the receivables. As for Offshore engineering
groups, the relevant receivables within credit period have lower
credit risk after the grouping based on credit risk characteristics
according to individual credit risk assessment and historical data. As
to other groups like due from related parties, land lease prepayments
operating deposits, and etc, if the credit risk is assessed low after
grouping based on the assessment on credit risk and their historical
loss experience, no impairment loss is recognised for those groups.

Group 1 Containers

Group 2 Road transportation vehicles

Group 3 Energy, chemical and liguid food equipment
Group 4 Airport facilities

Group 5 Logistics services

Group 6 Other business

Methods of provision for receivables assessed on a collective group basis (based on an ageing analysis, a
percentage of the total balance and others).

Containers Provision is determined based on an aging analysis (Overdue aging)
Road transportation vehicles Provision is determined based on an aging analysis (Overdue aging)

Energy, chemical and liquid food equipment  Provision is determined based on an aging analysis (Overdue aging)

Airport facilities Provision is determined based on an aging analysis (Overdue aging)
Logistics services Provision is determined based on an aging analysis (Overdue aging)
Heavy truck Provision is determined based on an aging analysis (Overdue aging)
Other business Provision is determined based on an aging analysis (Overdue aging)

Finance lease receivables Provision is determined based on model analysis
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Receivables that are assessed for impairment on a collective group basis (Continued)

For the above groups, provision is made based on their respective ageing analysis follows:

[ N
Pe e €p e fjrad are. 48

A A (%) N
Ay kL G. A1.2456 G. 3
\'Nithih 1 year (inclusive) 5% 0%-5%
1 to 2 years (inclusive) 30% 30%
Over 2 years 100% 100%

When the Group transfers the accounts receivable to the financial institutions without
recourse, the difference between the proceeds received from the transaction and their
carrying amounts and the related taxes is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Inventories

Classification

Inventories include raw materials, work in progress, semi-finished goods, finished goods and reusable materials.
Reusable materials include low-value consumables, packaging materials and other materials, which can be used
repeatedly but do not meet the definition of fixed assets.

Cost of inventories

Cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average method.

The underlying factors in the determination of net realisable values of inventories and basis
of provision for decline in value of inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other expenditures incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Borrowing
costs directly related to the production of qualifying inventories are also included in the cost of inventories (see
Note 11.16). In addition to the purchasing cost of raw materials, work in progress and finished goods include direct
labour costs and an appropriate allocation of production overheads.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Inventories (Continued)

The underlying factors in the determination of net realisable values of inventories and basis
of provision for decline in value of inventories (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the normal course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and the estimated expenses and related taxes necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value
of materials held for use in the production of inventories is measured based on the net realisable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated. The net realisable value of the quantity of inventory held
to satisfy sales or service contracts is based on the contract price. If the quantities of inventories specified in
sales contracts are less than the quantities held by the Group, the net realisable value of the excess portion of
inventories shall be based on general selling prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of each class of inventories is recognised in profit or loss as
a provision for diminution in the value of inventories.

Inventory system

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.

Amortisation of reusable material including low-value consumables and packaging material

Reusable materials including low-value consumables and packaging materials are amortised in full when received
for use. The amounts of the amortisation are included in the cost of the related assets or profit or l0ss.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the Company’s long-term equity investments in its subsidiaries and the
Group's long-term equity investments in its joint ventures and associates.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the Company is able to exercise control. Joint ventures are the
investees over which the Group is able to exercise joint control together with other ventures and the Group
enjoys the rights only on the net assets of investees. Associates are the investees that the Group has significant
influence on their financial and operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the Company’s financial statements using the cost method, and
are adjusted for preparing the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. Investments in joint
ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Determination of investment cost

For long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination: for long-term equity investments
acquired through a business combination involving enterprises under common control, the investment cost
shall be the absorbing party’s share of the carrying amount of owners’ equity of the party being absorbed at the
combination date; for long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination involving enterprises
not under common control, the investment cost shall be the combination cost.

For long-term equity investments acquired not through a business combination: for long-term equity investment
acquired by payment in cash, the initial investment cost shall be the purchase price actually paid; for long-term
equity investments acquired by issuing equity securities, the initial investment cost shall be the fair value of the
equity securities issued.

Subsequent measurement

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the cost method, they are measured at the initial
investment costs, and cash dividends or profit distribution declared by the investees are recognised as
investment income in profit or 10ss.

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets
at the acquisition date, the long-term equity investment is measured at the initial investment cost; where the
initial investment cost is less than the Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date, the difference is included in profit or loss and the cost of the long-term equity investment is
adjusted upwards accordingly.

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method, the Group recognises the investment
income according to its share of net profit or loss of the investee. If the accounting policies and the accounting
periods are inconsistent between the Company and investees, the financial statements of investees are adjusted
in accordance with the accounting policies and accounting period of the Company. The Group discontinues
recognising its share of net losses of an investee after the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment
together with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the investor's net investment in the
investee are reduced to zero. However, if the Group has obligations for additional losses and the criteria with
respect to recognition of provisions under the accounting standards on contingencies are satisfied, the Group
continues recognising the investment losses and the provisions. For changes in owners' equity of the investee
other than those arising from its net profit or loss, the Group records its proportionate share directly into capital
surplus, provided that the Group’s proportion of shareholding in the investee remains unchanged. The carrying
amount of the investment is reduced by the Group’s share of the profit distribution or cash dividends declared by
an investee. The unrealised profits or losses arising from the intra-group transactions amongst the Group and its
investees are eliminated in proportion to the Group’s equity interest in the investees, and then based on which
the investment gains or losses are recognised. For the loss on the intra-group transaction amongst the Group
and its investees attributable to asset impairment, any unrealised loss is not eliminated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Basis for determining the existence of joint control or significant influence over an investee

Control is the power over the investee to enjoy variable returns by participating in related activities of the
investee and the ability to affect the return amount by executing the power over the investee.

Joint control is the sharing of control over an arrangement according to related agreement, and exists only when
the decisions relating to the activity of the arrangement require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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13.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.
Investment properties are accounted for using the cost model and stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses. Subsequent expenditures incurred in relation to
an investment property are included in the cost of the investment property when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group and their costs can be reliably measured; otherwise, the expenditures
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. An investment property is depreciated or
amortised, less its estimated residual value, using the straight line method over its estimated useful life, unless
the investment properties are classified as held for sale (see Note 11.28). For the method of impairment testing
and measuring, refer to Note 11.20.

The useful lives, residual value rate and depreciation/amortisation rate of each class of investment properties are
as follows:

N I Dy st 4

OB/ e Rel.. a ‘a A yslliy . £

O 5 B) G4 (%) G4 (%)

Land use rights 29-50 - 2-3.4%
Plant and buildings 20-30 10% 3-4.5%

When an investment property is transferred to owner-occupied properties, it is reclassified as fixed asset or
intangible asset at the date of the transfer. When an owner-occupied property is transferred out for earning
rentals or for capital appreciation, the fixed asset or intangible asset is reclassified as investment properties at its
carrying amount at the date of the transfer.

The investment property’s estimated useful life, net residual value and depreciation (amortisation) method applied
are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate at each year-end.

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. The net amount of proceeds from
sale, transfer, retirement or damage of an investment property after its carrying amount and related taxes and
expenses is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

. Fixed assets

Recognition

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Group for use in the production of goods or supply of
services, for rental to others or for operation and administrative purposes with useful lives over one year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. The cost of self-constructed assets is
measured in accordance with the policy set out in Note I1.15.

Where parts of an item of fixed asset have different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group in different
patterns thus necessitating use of different depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised as a separate
fixed asset.

The subsequent costs including the cost of replacing part of an item of fixed assets are recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if the to recognise fixed assets criteria are satisfied, and the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of fixed assets are recognised in profit or l0ss as
incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

95



96

China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)

English Translation for Reference Only

14.

(2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Fixed assets (Continued)

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets to their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives, unless the fixed asset is classified as held for sale (see Note
11.28). For the fixed assets that have been provided for impairment loss, the related depreciation charge is
prospectively determined based upon the adjusted carrying amounts over their remaining useful lives. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are as follows:

[N

R, A Ry Doyt £ D 4. £
C g, O 5 8) fa b Fy (%) Gy (%)
Plants and buildings 20-30 10% 3-4.5%
Machinery and equipment 10-12 10% 7.5-9%
Office and other equipment 3-5 10% 18-30%
Motor vehicles 5 10% 18%
Dock, wharf 50 10% 1.8%
Offshore engineering equipment 15-30 10% 3-6%

Useful lives, residual value and depreciation methods are reviewed at least at each year-end.
For the method of impairment testing and measuring, refer to Note 11.20.

Basis for identification of fixed assets held under finance leases and related measurement

For criteria of recognition and method of measuring for fixed assets under a finance lease, refer to Note Il 27(3).

Disposal

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. The amount of proceeds from disposal on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of a fixed asset net of its
carrying amount and related taxes and expenses is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see Note 11.16), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

A self-constructed asset is included in construction in progress before it is transferred to fixed asset when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against construction in progress. Construction in progress
is stated in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see Note 11.20).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

Except for the above, other borrowing costs are recognised as financial expenses in the income statement when
incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest (including amortisation of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period is determined as follows:

- Where funds are borrowed specifically for the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset,
the amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds before being used on the asset.

- Where funds are borrowed generally and used for the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset, the amount of interest to be capitalised on such borrowings is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the excess amounts of cumulative expenditures on the
asset over the above amounts of specific borrowings. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
interest rates applicable to the general-purpose borrowings.

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through
the expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the
borrowings.

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The
exchange differences related to the principal and interest on foreign currency borrowings other than a
specific-purpose borrowing are recognised as a financial expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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16.

17.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to
the date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities of acquisition, construction or production that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress, and ceases when the assets become ready for their intended use or sale.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended when the acquisition, construction or production activities are
interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts over three months.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note 11.20). For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost
less residual value and impairment loss is amortised on the straight-line method or other more appropriate
methods that can reflect the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are expected to be realised over its
estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is classified as held for sale (see Note 11.28).

The respective amortisation periods for such intangible assets are as follows:

A ysBq . £ . 5B

e 358
Land use rights 20-50
Maritime space use rights 40-50
Technological know-how and trademarks 5-10
Timber concession rights 20
Customer relationships 3-8
Customer contracts 3-4
Franchise rights 10-18

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review of its useful life and amortisation method is performed at
each year-end, with adjustment made as appropriate.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life and is not amortised when there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the Group. At
balance sheet date, an impairment test will be conducted.



Interim Report 2016

17.

18.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
English Translation for Reference Only

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Expenditures on an internal research and development project are classified into expenditures on the research
phase and expenditures on the development phase. Research is original and planned investigation undertaken
with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding. Development is the
application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved materials, devices, products or processes before the start of commercial production or use.

The expenditure on an internal research and development project is classified into expenditure on the research
phase and expenditure on the development phase based on its nature and whether there is material uncertainty
that the research and development activities can form an intangible asset at end of the project.

Expenditure on the research phase, such as expenditure on planned research, assessment and selection
for manufacturing technique, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. Before mass
production, expenditure on the development phase, such as expenditure on design and test for finalized
application, is capitalised only if all of the following conditions are satisfied:

- it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
- management intends to complete the intangible asset, and to use or sell it;
- it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate economic benefits;

- there are adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and the ability to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development phase can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet the conditions above are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred. Development costs previously recognised as expenses are not recognised as
an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised expenditure on the development phase is presented as development
costs in the balance sheet and transferred to intangible assets at the date that the asset is ready for its intended
use.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the acquirer’'s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the acquiree under the business combination involving entities not under common
control.

Goodwill is not amortised and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note 11.20). On disposal
of an asset group or combination of asset groups, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is written off
and included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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19.

20.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortised on a straight-line method within the beneficial period.
The amortization periods for expensed are as follows:

A vysllg . £ ¥ 7

by ()
Rental 2-10
Others 5-10

Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible assets with finite useful lives, investment properties measured
using the cost model and long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are tested
for impairment if there is any indication that the assets may be impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result
of the impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, a
provision for impairment and an impairment loss are recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Provision
for asset impairment is determined and recognised on the individual asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of assets to which the asset
belongs is determined. A group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to generate independent
cash inflows.

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial statements is tested at least annually for impairment,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying value
of goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups or combination of asset groups which are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the business combination. If the result of the test indicates that the recoverable amount
of an asset group or combination of asset groups, including the allocated goodwill, is lower than its carrying
amount, the corresponding impairment 10ss is recognised. The impairment loss is first deducted from the carrying
amount of goodwill that is allocated to the asset group or combination of asset groups, and then deducted from
the carrying amounts of other assets within the asset groups or combination of asset groups in proportion to the
carrying amounts of assets other than goodwill.

Once an impairment 10ss is recognised, it is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for product warranties, onerous contracts etc. are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors surrounding a contingency, such as the risks, uncertainties and the time value of money, are
taken into account as a whole in reaching the best estimate of a provision. Where the effect of the time value of
money is material, the best estimate is determined by discounting the related future cash outflows. The increase
in the discounted amount of the provision arising from passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

The carrying amount of provisions is reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

In terms of a possible obligation resulting from a past transaction or event, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events or a present obligation resulting from
a past transaction or event, where it is not probable that the settlement of the above obligation will cause an
outflow of economic benefits, or the amount of the outflow cannot be estimated reliably, the possible or present
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability.

22. Share-based payments

(M

Classification
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22.

©)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Basis of the best estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest

At each balance sheet date during the vesting period, the Group makes the best estimation according to the
latest information of the number of employees who are granted to vest and revises the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. On vesting date, the estimate shall be equal to the number of equity instruments
that ultimately vested.

Accounting treatment for share-based payment

(@)

Equity-settled share-based payments

Where the Group uses shares or other equity instruments as consideration for services received from the
employees, the payment is measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted to the employees
at the grant date. If the equity instruments granted to employees vest immediately, the fair value of the
equity instruments granted is, on grant date, recognised as relevant cost or expenses with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve. If the equity instruments granted to employees do not vest until the completion
of services for a vesting period, or until the achievement of a specified performance condition, the Group,
at each balance sheet date during the vesting period, makes the best estimation according to the latest
information of the number of employees who are granted to vest and revises the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Based on the best estimation, the Group recognises the services received
for the current period as related costs or expenses, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve, at an
amount equal to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

Cash-settled share-based payments

Where the Group receives services from employees by incurring a liability to deliver cash or other assets
for amounts that are determined based on the price of shares or other equity instruments, the service
received from employees is measured at the fair value of the liability incurred. If the rights under a
cash-settled share-based payment do not vest until the completion of services for a vesting period, or until
the achievement of a specified performance condition, the Group, at each balance sheet date during the
vesting period, recognises the services received for the current period as related costs or expenses, with
a corresponding increase in liability, at an amount equal to the fair value of the liability based on the best
estimate of the outcome of vesting.



Interim Report 2016

23.

(1

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
English Translation for Reference Only

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit in the periods arising in the course of the Group’s ordinary
activities when the inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other than increase relating to contributions
from shareholders. Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group, the revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the following respective conditions are
met.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all of the general conditions stated above and following
conditions are satisfied:

(@)  The significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have been transferred to the buyer;

(b)  The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the considerations received or receivable under the sales contract or agreement.

a. Containers and airport facilities sales revenue
The Group recognises revenue after receive acceptance certificates from customers.
b.  Road transportation vehicles and heavy truck sales revenue

Sales of road transportation vehicles are divided into sales to domestic customers and sales to
overseas customers. As to sales to domestic customers, the Group recognises revenue after
customers pick up and accept the vehicles. As to sales to overseas customers, the Group recognises
revenue after vehicles are loaded to specified ship in specific port assigned by the customer pursuant
to contracts.

C. Real estate sales revenue

The Group recognises revenue when the purchase and sell agreement is performed. When the
property is sold in advance before completion, the revenue is recognised only when the construction
is completed and delivered to the buyer. The deposits and installment received before revenue
recognition are regarded as advance from customers.
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23.

(2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract expenses
associated with the construction contract are recognised at the balance sheet date using the percentage of
completion method.

The stage of completion of a contract is determined based on completion of a physical proportion of the contract
work.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably:

(@) If the contract costs can be recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that
can be recovered, and the contract costs are recognised as contract expenses when incurred;

(b) If the contract costs cannot be recovered, the contract costs are recognised as contract expenses
immediately when incurred, and no contract revenue is recognised.

Construction contract revenue includes initial revenue stipulated by contract and increased amount generated by
contract alteration.

Increased amount cannot be recognised as contract revenue unless the following contract alteration terms are all
satisfied:

(c)  Client accepts and confirms the increased amount generated by contract alteration;
(d) Increased amount can be reliably measured.
Contract anticipated loss is recognised when estimated total construction contract cost exceeds contract

revenue. Provision should be made for contract anticipated loss and charged into profit and losses for the current
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

. Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is measured at the fair value of the considerations received or receivable
under the contract or agreement.

At the balance sheet date, where outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated
reliably, revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction based on the progress of work performed.

Where outcome of rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, if the costs incurred are expected to be
recoverable, revenues are recognised to the extent that the costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable,
and an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss as service cost; if the costs incurred are not expected to be
recoverable, the costs incurred are recognised in profit or loss and no service revenue is recognised.

For freight agencies, revenues are recognised at the ship departure date (export) or the arrival date (import). As
to land freight agencies, revenues are recognised when goods have arrived at the specified location. For shipping
agency: revenues are recognised at the day that ship departures.
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24.

(M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

Employee benefits represent all kinds of allowances and compensations paid by the Group for services rendered
by employees or for termination of employment relationship, which mainly include short-term wages, pension
benefits and termination of employment benefits.

Short-term wages

Short-term wages include wages or salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds, labour union funds, employee education funds and
short term paid absence and etc. Actual short-term wages are recognised as liabilities in the periods when
the employees render services and are charged into profit or loss or capitalised in costs of related assets. The
non-monetary welfare is measured at fair value.

Pension benefits

During the reporting period, the Group’s pension benefits are basic pension insurance and unemployment
insurance which are all defined contribution plans.

- Basic pension insurance

The Group's employees participated in the basic social pension insurance organised and implemented by
local labour and social security bureau. The Group paid the basic pension issuance expenses monthly to
designated insurance companies for its employees according to the basis amounts and rates determined by
the local regulations. After retirement, local labour and social security bureau is responsible for paying the
pension benefit to the retired employees. The amounts of pension insurance payable calculated according
to the above regulations are recognised as liabilities during the periods when the employees render
services and are charged to profit or l0ss or capitalised in costs of related assets.

Enterprise annuities plan

The Group provides compensation for the termination of employment relationship before the expiry of
employment contracts or compensation to encourage employees’ voluntary layoffs, which is recognised as a
liability and charged to profit or loss on the earlier one when the Group is unable to unilaterally withdraw the
plan on the termination of employment relationship or the layoff proposal and costs and expenses in relation to
the payment of compensation to the termination of employment relationship are recognised.

The Enterprise annuities plan with payment within one year at the balance sheet date are classified as current
liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or non-monetary assets from the government to the
Group at nil consideration except for the capital contribution from the government as an investor in the Group,
including refund of taxes and financial subsidies, etc.. Special funds such as investment grants allocated by
the government, if clearly defined in official documents as part of “capital reserve” are dealt with as capital
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II. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date. The carrying amount of
a deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Operating and finance leases (Continued)

Assets leased out under operating leases

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases, except for investment properties (see Note 11.13) are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's depreciation policies described in Note 11.14(2). Impairment losses are provided
for in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 11.20. Other leased out assets under operating
leases are amortised using the straight-line method. Income derived from operating leases is recognised in the
income statement using the straight-line method over the lease term. If initial direct costs incurred in respect of
the assets leased out are material, the costs are initially capitalised and subsequently amortised in profit or loss
over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. Otherwise, the costs are charged to profit or loss
immediately.

Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance lease, the asset is measured at an amount equal to the
lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease. At the commencement of the lease term, the minimum lease payments are recorded as long-term
payables. The difference between the value of the leased assets and the minimum lease payments is recognised
as unrecognised finance charges. Initial direct costs that are attributable to a finance lease incurred by the Group
are added to the amounts recognised for the leased asset. Depreciation and impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policies described in Notes 11.14(2) and 11.20, respectively.

If there is a reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the lease
term, the leased asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life. Otherwise, the leased asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and its estimated useful life.

Unrecognised finance charge under finance lease is amortised using an effective interest method over the lease
term. The amortisation is accounted for in accordance with principles of borrowing costs (see Note 11.16).

At the balance sheet date, long-term payables arising from finance leases, net of the unrecognised finance
charges, are presented as long-term payables or non-current liabilities due within one year, respectively, in the
balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Assets held for sale and discontinued operation (Continued)

Assets and liabilities of a non-current asset or disposal group which is classified as held for sale are classified as
current assets and current liabilities, which are separately presented in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component which has been disposed or classified as held for sale of the group’s
business and the operations and financial reporting of the discontinued operation can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the group and can meet one of the following criteria:

(@)  This component of the business represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of
operations;

(b)  This component of the business is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations;

(c)  This component of the business is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting is a method which recognises the offsetting effects of fair value and cash flow of the hedging
instruments and the hedged items on current profit or l1oss in the same accounting period(s).

Hedged items are the items that expose the Group to risks of changes in fair value or future cash flows and that
are designated as being hedged. The Group’s hedged item include a forecast transaction that is settled with a
fixed amount of foreign currency and expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

A hedging instrument is a designated derivative whose changes in fair value or cash flows are expected to offset
changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item. For a hedge of foreign currency risk, a non-derivative
financial asset or non-derivative financial liability may also be used as a hedging instrument.

The hedge is assessed by the Group for effectiveness on an ongoing basis and judged whether it has been highly
effective throughout the accounting periods for which the hedging relationship was designated. A hedge is
regarded as highly effective if both of the following conditions are satisfied:

- at the inception and in subsequent periods, the hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the period for which the
hedge is designated;

- the actual results of offsetting are within a range of 80% to 125%.
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29.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Hedge accounting (Continued)

Cash flow hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows. The portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in shareholders’ equity as a
separate component. That effective portion is adjusted to the lesser of the following in absolute amounts:

- the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument from inception of the hedge;

- The cumulative change in present value of the expected future cash flows on the hedged item from
inception of the hedge.

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an ineffective hedge is
recognised in profit or l0ss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability, the associated gain or 10ss is removed from shareholders’ equity and recognised in profit or
loss in the same period during which the financial asset or financial liability affects profit or loss. However, if the
Group expects that all or a portion of a net loss recognised directly in shareholders’ equity will not be recovered
in future accounting periods, it reclassifies into profit or loss the amount that is not expected to be recovered.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss in the same period
during which the financial asset or financial liability affects profit or loss. However, if the Group expects that all
or a portion of a net loss recognised directly in shareholders’ equity will not be recovered in future accounting
periods, it reclassifies into profit or 10ss the amount that is not expected to be recovered.

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or
loss is removed from shareholders’ equity and recognised in profit or loss in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, the Group will discontinue the hedge accounting treatments prospectively. In this case, the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument that remains recognised directly in shareholders’ equity from the period
when the hedge was effective shall not be reclassified into profit or loss and is recognised in accordance with
the above policy when the forecast transaction occurs. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that remains recognised directly in shareholders’ equity from the
period when the hedge was effective shall be reclassified into profit or loss immediately.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Dividend distribution

Cash dividend is recognised as a liability for the period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders’
meeting.

Dividends or distributions of profits proposed in the profit appropriation plan which will be authorised and

declared after the balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date but disclosed in
the notes separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise significant influence over another party, or vice
versa, or where two or more parties are subject to common control or joint control from another party, they are
considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State and that have no other related party relationships are
not regarded as related parties of the Group. Related parties of the Group and the Company include, but are not
limited to:

(@) the Company’s parent;

(b)  the Company’s subsidiaries;

(c)  enterprises that are controlled by the Company’s parent;

(d) investors that have joint control or exercise significant influence over the Group;

€)

113



114 China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
English Translation for Reference Only

II. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

31. Related parties (Continued)
(J) key management personnel of the Company’s parent and close family members of such individuals; and
(k) close family members of key management personnel of the Company’s parent; and

() other enterprises that are controlled or jointly controlled by principal individual investors, key management
personnel of the Group, and close family members of such individuals.

Besides the related parties stated above determined in accordance with the requirements of CAS, the following
enterprises and individuals are considered as (but not restricted to) related parties based on the disclosure
requirements of Administrative Procedures on the Information Disclosures of Listed Companies issued by the
CSRC:

(m) enterprises or persons that act in concert that hold 5% or more of the Company’s shares;

(n) individuals and close family members of such individuals who directly or indirectly hold 5% or more of the
Company’s shares, supervisors for listed companies and their close family members;

(0) enterprises that satisfy any of the aforesaid conditions in (a), (c) and (m) during the past 12 months or will
satisfy them within the next 12 months pursuant to a relevant agreement;

(p) individuals who satisfy any of the aforesaid conditions in (i), (j) and (n) during the past 12 months or will
satisfy them within the next 12 months pursuant to a relevant agreement; and

(@) enterprises, other than the Company and subsidiaries controlled by the Company, which are controlled

directly or indirectly by an individual defined in (i), (j), (n) or (p), or in which such an individual assumes the
position of a director or senior executive.

32. Segment reporting
Reportable segments are identified based on operating segments which are determined based on the structure
of the Group's internal organisation, management requirements and internal reporting system. An operating
segment is a component of the Group that meets the following conditions:

- It engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses;

- Its financial performance are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management to make decisions about
resource to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

- The Group is able to obtain its financial information regarding financial position, financial performance and
cash flows, etc.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a single operating segment if the segments have same
or similar economic characteristics, and are similar in respect of the following aspects:

the nature of each product and service;

- the nature of production processes;

- the type or class of customers for the products and services;

- the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services;

- the legal and regulatory impact on manufacturing of products and rendering of services.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of actual transaction price for such transactions for segment
reporting, and segment accounting policies are consistent with those for the consolidated financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Notes V.18, IX and XIV contain information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
of goodwill, share-based payments and fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of receivables

As described in Note 11.10, receivables that are measured at amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is recognised. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about loss events such as a significant decline in the estimated future cash flow of an individual debtor
or the portfolio of debtors, and significant changes in the financial condition that have an adverse effect on the
debtor. If there has been a change in the factors used to determine the provision for impairment which indicates
that the value of the receivables has recovered, the impairment loss recognised in prior years can be reversed.
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(2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

Provision for diminution in value of inventories

As described in Note 11.11, the net realisable value of inventories is under management’s regular review, and
as a result, provision for diminution in value of inventories is recognised for the excess of inventories’ carrying
amounts over their net realisable value. When making estimates of net realisable value, the Group takes into
consideration the use of inventories held on hand and other information available to form the underlying
assumptions, including the inventories’ market prices and the Group’s historical operating costs. The actual
selling price, the costs of completion and the costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes may vary
based on the changes in market conditions and product saleability, manufacturing technology and the actual use
of the inventories, resulting in the changes in provision for diminution in value of inventories. The net profit or
loss may then be affected in the period when the provision for diminution in value of inventories is adjusted.

Impairment of long-term assets

As described in Note 11.20, assets such as fixed assets, intangible assets and investment properties, excluding
inventories and financial asset, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is
recognised.

The recoverable amount of an asset (asset group) is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its
present value of expected future cash flows. Since a market price of the asset (the asset group) cannot be
obtained reliably, the fair value of the asset cannot be estimated reliably. In assessing value in use, significant
judgements are exercised over the asset’s production, selling price, related operating expenses and discounting
rate to calculate the present value. All relevant materials which can be obtained are used for estimation of the
recoverable amount, including the estimation of the production, selling price and related operating expenses
based on reasonable and supportable assumption.

Depreciation and amortisation of assets such as fixed assets, intangible assets and
investment properties

As described in Note 11.13, 14 and 17, investment properties, fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated
and amortised over their useful lives after taking into account residual value. The useful lives of the assets are
regularly reviewed to determine the depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each reporting period. The
useful lives of the assets are determined based on historical experiences of similar assets and the estimated
technical changes. If there have been significant changes in the factors used to determine the depreciation or
amortisation, the rate of depreciation or amortisation is revised prospectively.

Warranty provisions

As described in Note V.34, the Group makes provisions under the warranties it gives on the sale of its products
based mainly on the Group’s recent claim experience. Because it is possible that the recent claim experience
may not be indicative of future claims that the Group will receive in respect of past sales, a considerable level of
management’s judgement is required and exercised to estimate the provision. Any increase or decrease in the
provision will affect profit or loss in future years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

Construction contract

As described in Note 11.23, contract revenue and contract profit are recognised based on the stage of completion
of a contract which is determined with reference to the proportion of the physical construction work completed
to the total estimated construction work. Where a contract is completed substantially and its contract revenue
and contract expenses to completion can be reliably measured, the Group estimates contract revenue and
contract expenses with reference to its recent construction experience and the nature of the construction
contracts. For a contract that is not completed substantially, contract revenue that should be recognised based
on its stage of completion, is not recognised and disclosed in the financial statements. Therefore, at the balance
sheet date, actual total contract revenue and total contract cost may be higher or lower than the estimated total
contract revenue and total contract cost and any change of estimated total contract revenue and total contract
cost may have financial impact on future profit or 10ss.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. There are some transactions and events for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Significant judgment is
required from the Group in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The
Group carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management’s judgment is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

117



118 China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 June 2016
(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)
English Translation for Reference Only

[ll. TAXATION
1. Main taxes categories and rates

Ty 6% jgan Ta, 888 ENE™
Value added tax (VAT) (a) The output VAT calculated based on taxable income from 6%, 11% and 17%
sales of goods and rendering of service, after subtracting
the deductable input VAT of the period, is VAT payable

Business tax Taxable revenue 5%

Urban maintenance and Business tax payable and VAT payable 7%
construction tax

Income tax Taxable income Note 1

The Netherlands/Australia Calculated based on revenue arising from sales of goods 10-19%
service tax rate and rendering of service, less deductible or refundable

taxes for purchase of goods

(@) Pursuant to “Circular on the Launch of Pilot for the Change from Business Tax to Value-Added Tax” (Cai
Shui [2016] No0.36) and Annex “Pilot Proposals for the Change from Business Tax to Value-Added Tax”
issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, the launch of pilot for the
change from business tax to value-added tax will be expanded nationwide. All subsidiaries of the Group’s
segments (Containers, Road transportation vehicles, Energy, chemical and liquid food equipment,Offshore
engineering,Airport facilities equipment Logistic services,Financial business and Real estate are applicable
to Value-Added Tax (VAT).The VAT rates are 17%, 6% and 11% respectively except small-scale taxpayers.

Note 1: The income tax rates applicable to the Group for the period are as follows:

2016 2015
The Company 25% 25%
Subsidiaries registered in China 15-25% 15-25%
Subsidiaries registered in Hong Kong 16.5%-25% 16.5%-25%
Subsidiaries registered in British Virgin Islands -
Subsidiary registered in Suriname 36% 36%
Subsidiary registered in Cambodia 20% 20%
Subsidiary registered in US 15-35% 15-35%
Subsidiary registered in Germany 15.83-31.6% 15.83-31.6%
Subsidiary registered in Britain 20% 21%
Subsidiary registered in Australia 30% 30%
Subsidiary registered in the Netherlands 25.5% 25.5%
Subsidiary registered in Belgium 34% 34%
Subsidiary registered in Denmark 23.5% 24.5%
Subsidiary registered in Poland 19% 19%
Subsidiary registered in Thailand 20% 20%
Subsidiary registered in Singapore 17% 17%

Subsidiary registered in Sweden 26.3% 26.3%
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The Group’s subsidiaries that are entitled to preferential tax treatments are as follows:

k-
s#3v-V Prbpfa

Na 3 /iy £y s T 4y Rl £
1 Shenzhen CIMC - Tianda Airport 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Support Co., Ltd. high-tech enterprises in 2013
entitled to 15% preferential rate
2 Shenzhen CIMC Intelligent 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises,
Technology Co., Ltd. in 2014 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
3 Nantong CIMC Special 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Transportation Equipment high-tech enterprises In the period
Manufacture Co., Ltd. entitled to 15% preferential rate
4 Xinhui CIMC Special Transportation 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Equipment Co., Ltd. high-tech enterprises in 2013
entitled to 15% preferential rate
5 Dalian CIMC Logistics Equipment 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises,
Co., Ltd. in 2014 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
6 Shenzhen CIMC Special Vehicle 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises,
Co., Ltd. in 2014 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
7 Yangzhou CIMC Tong Hua Special 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises,
Vehicles Co., Ltd in 2014 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
8 Zhumadian CIMC Huajun Casting 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises,
Co. Ltd. In the period entitled to 15%
preferential rate
9 Zhangjiagang CIMC Sanctum 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises,
Cryogenic Equipment Machinery in 2014 entitled to 15% preferential
Co., Ltd. rate
10  Enric (Bengbu) Compressor Co., 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Ltd. high-tech enterprises, in 2014
entitled to 15% preferential rate
11 Shijiazhuang Enric Gas Equipment 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Co., Ltd. high-tech enterprises, in 2014
entitled to 15% preferential rate
12 Enric (Lang fang) Energy 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as

Equipment Integration Co., Ltd.

high-tech enterprises, In the period
entitled to 15% preferential rate
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2.

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Preferential tax treatments (Continued)

.2

s#3v-V Prbhpfa

Ny /iy £y - sl 13 Fy 4y R,38
13 Jingmen Hongtu Special Aircraft 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Manufacturing Co., Ltd high-tech enterprises, In the period
entitled to 15% preferential rate
14 Nantong CIMC Tank Equipment 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Co., Ltd high-tech enterprises, In the period
entitled to 15% preferential rate
15  Yangzhou Tonglee Reefer 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises
Container Co., Ltd. in 2013 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
16 Hunan CIMC Bamboo Industry 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises
Development Co., Ltd. in 2013 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
17 Wuhu CIMC Ruiliang Automobile 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises
CO LTD in 2013 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
18  Luoyang CIMC Lingyu Automobile 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises
CO., LTD. in 2013 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
19  Ziemann Holvrieka Asia Co., Ltd 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises
in 2013 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
20  Xinfa Airport Equipment Ltd. 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises
in 2013 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
21 Nantong CIMC Energy Equipment 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Co, Ltd high-tech enterprises, in 2014
entitled to 15% preferential rate
22  Liaoning CIMC Hashenleng Gas 25% 15% Continue to be recognised as
Liquefaction Plant Co., Ltd. high-tech enterprises, In the period
entitled to 15% preferential rate
23  Yangzhou Runyang Logistics 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises,
Equipments Co., Ltd. (YZRYL) in 2014 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
24 Gansu CIMC Huajun Vehicle Co., 25% 15% Recognised as high-tech enterprises,

Ltd. (GSH))

in 2015 entitled to 15% preferential
rate
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IV. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please refer to VI.1 and V.12 for the definition of Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

1. Cash at bank and on hand

LN
30) 4 31 December

Note 2016 2015
Cash on hand 3,420 1,664
Bank deposits (1) 4,374,994 3,575,892
Other cash balances (1) 663,337 909,610
Total 5,041,751 4,487,166

Including: cash abroad 715,663 1,402,645
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

The equity instruments held for trading are securities listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Singapore Exchange Limited, of which
the fair value is determined at the closing price the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on the last trading day of the period.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had certain unsettled forward contracts, mainly denominated in US dollars,
RMB, Japanese yen and euro. The nominal value of these contracts amounted to USD463 million, RMB955
million, JPY2,148 million and EUR11.65 million, respectively. Pursuant to these forward contracts, the Group
and the Company are required to buy/sell foreign currencies, such as USD, Japanese Yen, Euro of contracted
nominal value at agreed rates in exchange of RMB at the contract settlement dates. These forwards contracts
will be settled on a net basis by comparing the market rates at the settlement dates and the agreed rates. The
settlement dates of the aforesaid forwards contracts range from 1 July 2016 to 24 April 2017.

Foreign exchange option contracts

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had certain unsettled foreign exchange option contracts, denominated in U.S.
dollars. The nominal value of these contracts amounted to USD198 million; Depending on the contract terms
and the market condition, the Group will decide to exercise contractual rights or fulfill contractual obligations as
requested on the settlement day. The settlement dates of the aforesaid option contracts range from 1 July 2016
to 24 March 2017.

Currency swap contracts

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had 4 unsettled currency swap contracts denominated in US dollars. The initially
nominal value of these contracts amounted to USD8,804,000. These contracts will mature at 1 July 2019, 1 July
2019, 1 August 2019 and 1 September 2019 respectively. As at 30 June 2016, the fair value of the currency swap
contracts amounted to RMB14,581